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uestion, Have you been a-candidate since thie war for any public position

nswer. Yes, sir; Twas a cendidate for judgo of the district whero I lived, nt the time
of the olection, when the State constitution was adopted. ;

uestion. At that time were you in favor of, or oppused to, the adoption of the Stato
constitution 7 o

Answer, I was opposed to it ‘

Question. At that clection wus it not an’issiie as to whether the Stato would or would
not aequiesco in the reconstruction measures? ‘ ,

Answer, No, siv; that was a foregono conclusion, that the Stato must acquicses; bub
the constitution was objectionablo in many of its features, L fhink it was prétty well
settled thiat the negro must havethe ballot, and must be put on an equality hefore
the law with the wihite man.

Question. You considered that question as at rvest ?

Answer. 1 think so. 1 know there is no disposition to disturh it now,

By Mr, Bram: ‘

Qustion. What is the public deht of your Stite now ?

dAnsicer, T ean only approximate it. It hng been vaviously stated. It was abount
furty-tonr million dollars until the supreme courts cut off’ some ten or twelve millions,
reducing it to nbout thirty-one to thivty-five millions,

Question.' How much was it at the end ot the winr?

Answeer, 16 was about $12,000,000, and the aceumulated intervest, making in all ubont
15,000,000, o

Question. A1l the rest hag been added sinee?

Answeer, Intho last two or threo years, ; o

fuestion. 1s not. that fact one which gives your people @ great deal of appreheunsion ?

Answeer, 1t produees o great deal of disquiet,

Question, 1s not that fact caleulated to eause more disquict than almost anything
else d - . , . o
Ansiwer. Wellysiv, we have lost almost all hoperof {rying to do anything under this
disaster.  ‘The legislnture of North- Carolinn appropriated $6,666,000 tfor the Western
North Carolinn Railroad, and the voad hing not realized 200,000, so thit there has heen
aninerense of the debit. onacconnt of that rond of nearly §7,000,000,

Question. Tow did it hidppen that it did not realize but that amount?

Answer. Beeanse the oflicers of the company have got the money, and we eannot get
at them, . v

Question, Who ave the ofiicers of the company ?

Answer, General Littlefield is president,

Question, 19 he a native of North Carvolina 2. _ o

Ansieer. Noysivg 1 think he is an Ohio or Hlinois man,  Heeame there aftor the war,
The fivst president, George W, Swepson, is a native of North Cavoling, 1 helieve,  That
is the way we have been treated in“the western part of the State, not by ‘the Federal
Government, however; nobody attribites anything to tho National Governiment,

Question. How eoulid this simount of bonds of the State have got into the hands of
General Littlefield without the connivanee of the governor? o

Answer, OhHthe governor knew it he is responsible to some extent,

Question, Tow wag the rest ol the addition to the State debt erented ?

Answer. By approprintions for internal improvements; the whole appropriations
amotnted to about $20,000,000. ;

Question, Tt was not all tor the Western Railvoad ?

dnswer. No, sivy for various vailvowd sehemes,

Question, Did General Littlefickd have the management ol all the voads, or simply ot
the Western rodd,. :

Answer, 'The Western Railroad, o

Question, Who were thie other parties engiized in it 2

Answer, Lame o divector of the Western Railvoid,  The History of it'is this: You re-
memher agreat disaster happened to Nortli Caivoling honds in New York.  After being
offered so freely, they went down very rapitly, Mo Swepson sold ahout hali of them,
I understand,~ Ho then took w large amount of our funds, and went i bought
Floridae railvond hondg,“and tariied overything over to  General Littlefield:  These
were dirst nortgage honds, T-think, of the Jacksonville Railvoad'; they exchanged them
with the State oft Plovldn for State bords, and: these they hive ieen negotiating in
Europe,CGeneral Lit{lefield has just returned from Bitvope; and all our money has gono
into the Florida Railroad, so that we hiave got nothing, while they have got a rond in
Florida whiel'is covered with mortgages, and we eannot reach it.

Question. 1s this the smne Generil Littletielil for whom the authorities of your State
has issued 'a proelamation offering o reward ¢

Ansreer, Yes, shr g a reward of $5,000, 'The matter has gone very far to dissatisfy our
people. ‘The whole conduct of the legistuture has muaeh to do with it,

Question. What other railvoads were there approprintions made for ¢
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Ansicer, There was an appropriation for the Western Railroad of $2,000,000. 1 do
not think thioy have done very littlo.work. . -

Question, Which is the rond that Judge Henry is president of?

Auswer. Tho castern division of the Western road; that is another road. Judgo
Henry belonged to a commission withh Mr, Woodlin to tustitiite proceedings against the
men who haid “got our Stato bonds,  He is a divector of the eastern division; Iama
direetor of the western division.

By the CHAIRMAN: ,

Question. Wera theso botuds placed at, the disposal of the varvious rowds by an nét of
the legislature, and qetnally delivered in pusrsunnes of that et ! . ;

Answer, Yes, siry the Stato beennie s corpornfor {o the extent of two-thirds ot the
capital stock, und the charter provided that before the governor should isstio the honds
it should by cértified to him that the stockholders who subseribed the othier ono-third
were selvent-men, and good for the amount subseribed. But they made a bogus afluir
of it. I donot know how they did it, but the bonds were issaed. The wholoe eapital
stoek was $10,000,000. ; -

Question, Was the certifiente given to the governor?

Ansiter. No, siv; Mr, Woodfin, the chaivman of the conumission, says he eannot find
any certificate,

Question. Does that apply to all these roads or to the one of which you ave @ director !

Answer, Tho same provision applies to all the roads for which appropriations were
mado by the State,

Ouiestion. By whom was the certificate to be made? ‘ i

Answer, The Ianguage of the statute is, * 1 shall be certified” 1 think it is expeeted
that the president of the voad shall make the certifieate, or at least procure it to he
mude, o

Question, Was there suely i certifieate made of the rond of which you ave o divector!

Answer. Noysivy 1 think not.

Question. Ditl you get the honds?

Ansicer, Our president got thein,

Question. Was that fuet known to the direetors?

Anseer, It was known that he got them, but we supposed he had complied with the
law,

Question, In practice, by whom were the certificates to be made, and by whom were
they made? -

Answer, 'The Taw does not say hy whom, bhut in praetice it is expeeted that the presi-
dent citlier minkes or procures the certifivate to he made by some one cognizent of the
fuct, so that it is the duty of the president to present to the governor the certifieate,

Question. Would not the cevtifiente have to be made by the ofiicers who have eharge
of the corporation and of the subsceription both?

Ansiter, No, siv, there is no obligation on_the divectors to ke sueh a cevtific
cate; they had nothing to do with the finaneial matter,in faet, of the road at all, only
to superintend the construction of the road. "They were not at the eapital; they were
270 miles away. . ‘

Cuestion. Who hind the management of the finances it the diveetors did not ?

Ansicer, The divectors were also munagers, but the president was the tinaneial agent,

Question. Do you say that the cervtificate was made or else the bonds proenved with-
out the certificate, nud then that the honds were put o in the market without your
knowledge of the thet ? .

Anzwer, 1 do, ,

Question, Whose, then, is the fault, if theve is anys in the matter?

Answer. Tn the fivst place, the legishition wis Joose, nol well gnarded 3 secondly, the
governor wis eareless innob looking into the matter when he issaed the bonds: amd
thirdly, the bonds were never snbmitted to the divectors at all, but were taken from
Raleigh to New York, Not a single divector snw one of then,

Question, And the resalt is, that through this linprovident action apprehension exists
in the State of hankmptey ? « '

Answeer. Yesysire 1 do not pretend to say the governor is o party to it. He veally
appears to have been more negligent than eulpable,

By Muv, Ricis:

Question, Were wot all parties at the time this legislation fook place in favor ot inter-
nal improvements? , , )

Answer, Yosy sirg Tihink there was no party vole in these appiopriations gencrally,
but the result has heen disaster to the State in the mabagement of certain parties, and
that has produced dissutistaction.  Who is to blune abont it I cannot say.

By Mr. Bram:
Question. The authiorifics’of the State were those who came in under the reconstrue-
struction acts?
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Anateers Tt was the legislature that came in under those aets,

Question, Tho governor, then, was the same man who is governornow ?

Answer, Yes, gir, B N , EEPIRT AP

Qucstion, And it was by hig negligence, you say,if lio wag not eriminal in ths mat-
ter, that theso bonds are fssued to the extent they wero without any real foundation?

Answer. Yes, sir; Mr. Woodfin, who was appointed on the specinl commission to
investigato the matter, informs mo that he cannot find any certificuto on filo from any
one as authority for issuing the bonds,  Judge Henry knows about thit; he hils been o

witness horoe,
By My, Rice: ,
Question, How mueh of the Western rond has heen built ?
Answeer, About 20 miles of the vord has heen graded: but no track laid.
Question, And tlie hondg linve all been issned ?
Answer, All issued and gone,
By Mr.:Nvye:
Question, Who were the co-diveeloys? . ,
Answer, There were eight radieals appointed by the governor, and then there wore
fonr stoekliolders’ divectors, making twelve in all,
Question What are their names 7
Answers 1 hnve no list of them,  Mr, Swepson and General Littlefickd are now out.
The whole thing has been changed; they have turned out the management. it is in
dillerent hands,

By Mr. Bavanrn: .

Question. Turned it out after the obtiining of the bonds?

Answer, Yes, siv; after the money was all gone, - There was Major Rollins, Sciator
Abbotty My, Swepson, General Lit(lefield, Ao H, Jones, of the Honse ; o man by the
nane of Dickie, Mr. Ammon, General” RN, Henry, General Clingman, myself, J. H.
Meneman, and one morve that T do not remeinber,

Question, Who were the four elected by the stockhollders?

Answer, They were General Clingmain, a0 Mo Meneman, T think, mysell, and one
whoese name | do not remember,

By the Ciamesian:

Question. Who received the subserviptions !

Ansiwer, There were general commissioners appointed by the legislatuie; (hey took
the sithseriptions, il turned the books overto the stockliolders’ meeting, " 'Tho com-
missioners colleeted d per eenty il the president, M, Swepson, reported - that the 5
per vent. was paid in on 808 shares, 1 believe, which mude an ovganization ont of ity and
afterward the books were transferved to Raleigh, where the balance of the stock was
tkeinaip, Howas a large amoint thit was talien at Raleigh—nearly S3,000,000,

Question, How was the president eleeted ?

dusweer. By the divecétors,

By My, Bram:

Question,” 1s there not to he'a very Iarge expendifine for'other purposes by the State
of North Caroling, incadddition to this enormaons issue of honds ! .

Answer, Yes, sivy there has been aogreat deal of diticulty abont the penitentinry
systenny theve is animmense frawd thero somewhere; hundrids of thousauds of dol-
Laes have béen appropriated and bonds have been issued, which, I believe, have not
been reeadled, ,

Question, Was there or nol a heavy expenditare for calling ont (he militin ?

Awswer, Yeu, wivg -1 do not kinow the amount. ‘There has been somo inguiry in the
present legislivhiee about it

Question, Was not a great deal of the excifement attending (he last election on
aceount of the anxiety of the people arvising ont of appreliemted hankruptey of the
State! o :

Ansiwer, Yos, sivy that was the issue Iast sunmer; this veeklessness, extravagance,
ad waste ol thepubliec money.  Credit was the issue betore the people, and the only
issue,  Constitutional questions had nothing to do with it—the bulk ot it, T mean,
Men differed about these things, but it was a loeal State isste,

By M, Rics: .
Question, Did not General Clingiman acl in concert with Generalt Littleticld in regard
to the negotintion of” the honds?
Adnsieer, 1 have understood so.
Question, He was ono of the stockholders' divectors ¥
Adnswer, Yes,siv. 1 understood ho was down in Flovida,  But he is here, and had
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better explain that for himself. What I night state about him might affect his per-
sonal character, and it would be only ramor,

By thoe CIHAIRMAN:

Question. Did theso qitestions of financinl cmbirrassment nssuine such’ s shiape as to
affeet the public peaes ind seeurity of person and property thronghout tho Stuto?

Angiwer, T'do not think they did, but theve was a grent deal of politiesl excitement
growing out of the gquestion engendered in the public mind, and the great anxiety of
the pavty out of power was, us we thought, the reekless wd wasteful expenditure of
the public money.

By Mr. Ny

Question. 'The legislature that niade this grant was composed of men ot hoth parties?

Answer. Yes, sir, . :

Question, Was there any division of parties on the question ?

Answer. 1 do not think there was oo party vote onit, .

Ouestion, Were not hoth parties, so fite is you know, nhially ititerested in it !

Ansmiver. T coulll not give yon the vesult, hut 1 -doe not think there were any party
lines drawn on the appropriation. T will say this, that if the appropriation had heen
proeperly applied, there wonld have heen no dissatisfaetion about it

Question. T is the applieationind not the fuct of the appropriation, then, that exused
tho dissutisfietion ¢

Ansiwer, Yes, siv, The veelless misapplication of the money, not only in relation to
our railronds, but generiidly,

By Mr. Brain:

Question, The legishture and the State olicdrs that-came into power and made
these approprintions were chosen at the clection which took pliee nder the reeon-
struction nefs! '

Answer, Yeg, sivyelected at the sane time,

Question. By which ngreat nunther of’ the people of the State were distranehised ?

Answer, Yes, sivy they were distranchised tu the fiest election,

Question, Tt was the first legislaturo under the new constitution ¢

Ansteer, Yos, sir, -

Question, "The governor was clected at the same time ?

Answer, T think so. The governor was inmugweated in July, 1565, and the legishature
did not assemble (il the tall, Fhelieve we voted for members of the legistature at the
time wo voted on the adoption of the constitution,

By My, Bavann:

Question, The Tegistuture, which had to adopt certain prelintinary  constitutional
amendments oftered by the Congress of thé United States, was the Tegislatare, L ander-
stand you to say, that nitde these approprintions of the public wmoney !

Answeer. Yos, siv,

Question, And the Siate ofleers eleeted af the same time had the management of the
whole aftir? v

Answer, Yes, sive The present legislature is the second one under the reconstruetion
acts; the other was the fivst, ; ,

Question. Is there anything thut has ocenrred in the State of North Carvolina that has
caused the peaple of that State as mueh anxiety as this profligate waste of the ervedit
and money ol the State sinee the veeonstruetion acts ¢ *

Angieer, 1 think that was a matter of more concern to o people than anything else,

By Mr. Rien:
Question, Was that wade an issue in your canvass at any election prior to the one n
1870 ¢
Answer. No, givg it was not an issue in the fivst cmupaign, when-the fiest Jegislature
was clected. 7 '
Question, Bud the excitement in regard to the finaneind question o which you spoke
swas at the eleetion in Angust last !
Answer. Yes, sir,
By the Cramaan:
Question, Do we understand you as saying that it asswmed entively the shape of o
financial question in the last clection and was not a partisan eleetion?
Answer, Ol it was a partisun eleetion’; the parties undertook to justity the conduet
of "the State governmment on the one side, and to oppose it vehemently on the other.

By Mr, Rici:
Question. Aroe there any eharges made in the impeachment against Governor Holden
for wrongtully issuing thege bonds ¢
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Ansgicers Nogsir; I do not think there are. T think that was diseussed. 1 seo by the
papers that it was moved ag an amondment, hut I do not think it hias been put in, I
kunow that matter was disenssed hy the managers, but it was thought it wounld prolong
the investigation too much, and so they conelnded to leave it ont,

By Mr. Ny

Cuestion, Do you know whether any members of the present legislatiiee who took
their sénts have been tied ont sinee?

Answer. Yes, siv,

Cestion, Whal was the politieal ehiaracter of those turned oni. !

Csieer, 'Thers woere fawvo or three radieal senators tarned ont,

Ouestion, T they hadd not heen turned out what woulil have beenthie politiend el
seter of the Senate? ,

nswer. 1t woulil be decidedly demoeratie with thew,

Cuestion, Why were they turned ‘ont. ! B

Jnsaeer. Inc Al casee of one of the weny M Lasgsiter, it was prvely'a juestion of
votes, as 1 onderstand’y there was no legal guestion involyed, l!m. in vegardio the
ather two T understand the question to he this: Alaminee and: Guiltord Connties eon-
ditted one senatorinl district, entitled to two senators, Mr, Smith miud My, Gilmer were
veturned celeeted, Mg Gilmer had: no majority in Guilford: County, and also 'in the
whele distviet,  Mr. Sniith had o majority, connting the whole distriet; bt was beaten
in the county of CGhiilford alone j-so that i’ Alamianee was not counted he was defeated.
But Me, Giliner was eleeted in‘any event. Mr, Smith took his st 3 it was not con-
fested, - But the legislatire, following the judicial deecision of Chiet Justico Pearson,
deelaving the county of Alnmuanée to have been in insrrection, vacaied the seal of
Me. Simithand ovdered o new eleetion, My, Smith was again a candidate-for the senate
and was beaten, My, Gilmer, who had o majority any way, vetained his seat. ’

By Mr, Brame:

COuestion, Did fhe governor of the State ever assumie, in any of your eleetions, to
ilirow ont the voto of whole counties? _

Jusieer, None other than those fwo counties in insurvection, Alamance and Caswell,

By Mr, Bavannp:
Ouestion, By whose deeision was it that the voles of the counfy of Alamance were
not permitted to be counted ! , ‘
Answer, T think it was the decision of Chief Justice Pearson,
Question, Give us the modus operandi by which the votes were rejectol ? ‘
Austeer, suppose the legistate, when it asseibled, declared the eleetion void under
the decision of the ehief justice and ordered a new one,
By Mr. Nyi:
Question, Did not Mr. Smith take his seat in the legislature?
Answer. Yes, sir, L . ;
Question. "Then the legislature deelared his seaf vacant? _ '
Answeer, Howas nlrv:utv conceded that those connties were in insurreetion and would
not be counted. 1 think they were thrown out in the count for attorney general at the
same clection, I think that was the precedent, T am not sure ot this,

By Mr, Bavanp:
Question, By whom were they thrown out ?
Jnsiweer. By the authority of the governor and scscrr'l:n'y_ol‘ state, T suppose.
Iy Mre. Ny
Ouestion, ‘I'hen the chief justice held that they were in insurrecetion !
JAnswer. T think so, or that they were declaved in insurrection,

v M Bavanp:
Cestion, Dil any one eontest the seal of Mr, Smith ?
Answers Noy sivy the question tiened altogether on the legality of the eleetion,

By the CirairMaN:

Ouestion, What was the vote iu those Lwo counties of Alamanes and Guillord?
dnswer, Toeanniot tell yous 1 have not been a politician sinee the war-and do not
carry these things in my mind.
By Mr, BAvarp: ‘
Question, Was'there a great deal of fg-.olinﬁfi;l"i't?g;u‘d to the eléetion in Angust last ?
Answer, Woll, thero was o deep-seated feeling, but very little excitement at the polls.
Question, You say Governor H(‘)l(l(m"{n‘pchmncd theso counties in insurrection, Do
you know from conversation with leading members of the radical party whether they

approved the measures adopted by Governor Holden in regard to those counties ?
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Ansicer, 'They dofondeid tlicm § I'do not know that thoy approved them. I think Mr,
Phillips, a very distinguished gentleman and a enndidate for attornoy general, stumped
the State in defonso of that act of Governor Holden, ;

Qitestion, Were there any threats of the use of the military or any other than lawful
meatis to -cavry that election matle in your presence by the leading members of the
radieal pavty T 1t so, stuto who they were, e :

Aunswer, T have heavd o groat deal of talk s wo have talked polities pretty exeitedly,
A year ago T was in this city, and had frequent conversations with our Senators and
Represeutatives here, Iy conversation with Senntor Pool, i diseussiig North Caroling
polities generally, 1 sabd T hiad 1o doubt tho politics would e changed theve, that the
public sentiment was changing; and that the party inpower coulid not earry the next
election,  Then Re remarked, © that T might be satistied of one thing, they were going
to curry the elections any way 3 T might-bo sure of that,”  Ho mado that sort of roply
upon my intimating to him that we intended to beat him, .

Question. Was hoe at (hal time sustaining thewetion of Governor Holden?

Ausiwer, Yes, sivy he had been at Roléigleibout oo yearago, jind drew a bill in{lio
legislatire, as ho admitted, to regitlre the vailioad presidenitsito coms back and séttlo
with the publie freasury, and bring the bonds back, = I'told him thero was a doubt
about his power to enforee thit, and Ldid not think his bill would amount to any-
thing,  He reniivked that they must conie ek and settle; and they intended o havo

“asettlement, 1 told im that the only treibunal 1 knew of to settle this thing was the
peaple, and they were disgusted with i, and intended to see it righted at the ballot-
box,  He said 1T need not Jay that consolation to myself, that they intended to ey
the election,

By the Craansax:

Question, Ts it your meaning that My, Pool wished to conyey to you the idea that tho
election wonkld be carvicd by foree?

Answer, Tt made  chat impression on my mind, that they were determined to carry
the eleetion, « ;

Question. Please give us exaetly whiat e satd ?

Answeer, 1 have given it as nenras T eany the words 1 eoild not exaetly swear to,
He saidy with o grood deal o enaplinsis, © Weare going to earry the clection,”

Question, "Fhat was in responge to your assurance that you intended fo eavey it ?

Ausweer, That 1T thonght we would beat them, i

Question. That was your own interpretation of that language? e assured you that
his party were going to carry the election, and yone interpretation was that they
intended to carry it by foree !

Answer. Welly his manner was vehement and positive,

By Mr. Braanr:

Question, Was his answer in commection with duxthing that was said about the
dectaration of martial law in Alninanec and Caswell comnties !

Answer. No, sivy Ldo not think it had been econfemplated then, heeanse these difii-
culties did not exist then,

, WastINGTON, DL Cu Felrrary 1, 1871
Jases Lo Bovp recalled and examined, -

By the Cirareran: .

Question. Have you any knowledge of the faet that thie hssassination or mindder of Sena-
tor Stevens had been determined wpon it any eamp ol the Ku-Klux or White Brother-
hood 7 ‘

Answeer. No, sivs only I hieard it rimored afterward that it had been known in Ku-
Klitx cireles it my eottndty hefore his nssassination that it had been déetermined npon,

Question. Was it commninicated to yon by any persons whont you recognized as mem-
bers of that orgnnization ¢

Adnsweer. Yes, sir,

Question, Who were they ?

Answers Mr, Long, who was the chict of the ovganizition in my cotinty, told me hy
had been intormed by @ member who resided in Caswell, before ™ the assassination, that
it had heen determined upon,  IHis connnunication to e, however, was afler tho death
of Mr, Stevens, T

Question, Was it commmunicated by Mr, Long as a member of the organization, to you
as a member ot the organization )

Answer, Yes, sir, ) . } )

Question, Do you know anything of the assassination of W. R, Albright having been
determined npons if so, how, and what means did yon tako to preventit? v

Answer. Yes, siv; Ithink it was about a year and o halt ngo. I heard from members
of the organization that it had been determined to assassinate Mr, Albright, He is o
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citizen of my town and was o friend of mine, and I determined to prevent it if I possi-
bly could:” I saw some othor members of the organization, and told them that it ought
to'be stopped.  They ngreed with me, and by the assistance of some others we found
out.the origin, T did not myself, but some others found it out, where the attempt was
coming from, and succeeded in proventing it.

Question. By what menny? , N o

Ansteer, Simply by talking against it and persnading them to desist from thelr plan.

Question. I'or what reason was ho fo be assassinated, and where was the determina-
tion avpived at? - , . -

Ansteery T do not know in what particular enmp, or {ho particular nian’ that deter-
mined ipon his assassination, I think I received my information in regard to it from
(.-G, Curtis and W. 'S, Bradshavw, ; .

Question, -DId they give you thie reason that led to the determination? _

Ansicer, The rensoi was unilerstood to bo that ho had minde himself prominent in
polities there, amd was strongly opposed to tho conservative party—insisted upon the
rights ot the negroes, ‘ ‘

Question, Did you state in your previons examination your knowledge of the connec-
tion of Mr., Stradwick, present member of the house of representatives of North (aro-
linn, with the ovganization !

Answer, Yes, sir, ,

Question, Is he the sine gentleman who introduced the bill for the vepeal of the law
against the Ku-Klux ?

Answer. Yes, sivy 1 think the present member from Orange inttoduced the bill repeal-
ing what was known as the Shofiner bhill, aathorizing the governor to organizo the
wilitia, ,

fucstion, Do you know what position he ocenpies in the organization of the Ku-Klux;
whether he is'a commander?

Ansicer, I do not,

Question, Do you know of his - conneetion with any other injury perpétrated hy the
organization in Alamuncee County ¢

Adnswer, Tdo not, I have heard it often remarked by members of the organization
that hie was quite o violent member,

Question, Was thit during your connection with the organization ?

Answer, Yes, sirv, :

(Question, What do you know nbont the agent of the Associnted Press in the Stato
being o member-of that organization ?

Answer, 1 do not know the ngent of the Associated Press,

Question, 'The agent at-Raleigh, North Caroling ?

dnsiweer. 1 have heard it said that Johu C. Syme is a member of the Associated Press;
Edonot know him to be so. I know him to bo & member of the Constitutional Union
Gaards, .

Question. By what means do you know that ?

Auswer, By conversation with him and passing the signs,

Question, Yon say yorr' do not - know him to be the agent of the Associnted Press?

Answer, He is a veporter, T think, inthe Sentinel oftico in Raleigh,

COuestion.” Dk you hearaspeech of Mr. Furner, in Grahamy in veference to the negroes?

Answer, Tdid not. L

Ouestion. Dild you conmnunicato with Mr, Tharding anything about it?

Ansieer, No,y siv; T did not hear ity except 1 heard his voico in my oftice, where I was
at the time, ,

Juestion, \What éffeet hins the existence of this organization upon the willingness of'
people to testity invegard toitd e ; I

Ansieer. T have no doubt that the Tear of punishment by the organization déters o
preat many from speaking out, as they otherwise would, in- regard-to the facts,

Question. What is your own helief as to the position in which you have placed your-
sel by your testimony in the forner judicial investigation and by appearing now as a
wiluess !

Answer, Really T do not know. I am satisfledd that there is very great feeling
against me, but as to whether thevo is any intention to do me personal damago 1 can-
not. say.

Question, Is there any other fact that you wish to communicale in connection with
your former testimony ¢

Answeer, Not that 1 know of.

By Mr. Bram ¢ ‘
Question. Do you know auything about the Union League organization ?
Answer, 1 know that such an organization exists there.
Question, Who composo it ?
Angwer, T think o majority of its membors are colored men.
Question, What is its ohjeet ?
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, i

Aunswer, So far as T know, only political. Tunderstand it to be an organization of the
reputblican party ; in the interest of that party.

Question. I8 il n seerct organization 7

Anzeer. T do not. know whether. {heir meéctings arve seeret or open. I never was in
their meetings,  They had-pablic demonstrations, marehes, and dinners, in which the
wmembers appeared with their hadges, I

Question, 15 it not understood 1o he a seeret organization? :

Ansieer. Yes, siry I believe in sonie fnstances theirmeetings araunderstoad to he heid
in seeret, The initiations are probably in secret, none but memnbers being allowed to
he present, , NPT

Question, 1Tave you over licard'of their using intimidation or violenee to control other
negroes onfside of the organizition to vote their ticket? ,

Amseer, Yos, sivs Thave heuvd of sueh things often, but as fo the fenthof them T do
not know 3 T hiave heard it said. that negroes had been threatened by the Leagnes; |
have seen it published in the papers, .

Question, What is yourr belict on the subject as to the fiaet?

Ausieer, Welly sivy 1 eannot say that 1 think it is troe generally s theve may he some
individual instanees in which they attempt to use some strong measures to indnee
negroes to vote with theny hut nearly the whole of them vote the Republiean ticket
anyhow,

Question. Was not the Union League esfablished before there was anything said abong
the Kn-Klux?

Ansiver, Yos, siv, Tthink it existed in my State before T had any knowledge of the
Ku-Klux thére, o ,

Question, Was it not. generally known that there wis suech a seeret politieal ovgan-
ization long before there was any. Ku-Klux organization?

Answer. Yes, sivi as 1 said before, the League existed hefore Thknew anything about the
Ku-Klux, but how long hefore 1 do not know; 1 think it had existed'in my Stato for
gome {imne hefore November; 186830 1 think it was organized shortly after the surrender,
about the fime the fourteenth or fifteenth amendment was submitted to the legislature
for approval,

By Mr. Rice:

Question, Tave yon ever heard of any ease of violence by the Union League?

Ansicer, 1 have seen it pnblished,

Question. Do you know of any parties that have complained of actial violence com-
mitted by the Union League ?

Angwer. No, sire

Question, Hive any negroes made complaint, to your knowledge, that they were co-
erveed or injured in any way !

Answeer. No, sivy 1T never heard of any.

By the CHAIRMAN : ‘

Question. Trom your knawledge of the Ku-Klux organization, derived from having
Yeen a membér of ity is it in such a state of military organization as that it could by
culled together upon any emergency ? -

Aunswer. Oy yes, siv; the organization is very complete, from the commander-in-chief
down to the liewtennnts in the cainps ( ‘ ,

Question. Did you ¢ver liear a discussion in any of thieir campsupon the position they
wonld take in ease the United States should e involved in a foreign war!

Answer. No, sir; I never was in but one meeting, as I stated before,

Question, Tlave yvou heard any expression off tho members of the organization upon
this question !

Answer, No, sivy T eannot gay that I have.

WASHINGTON, Fehrnary 11,1571
Aroxzo B, Conriss sworn amd examined.

By the ClamsaN:

Question, State whether you were employed at any fime in the last year or twoas a
school teacher in North Carolina,

Answwer, 1 was,

Question, In what part of {the State? ]

Answer. In Alanance County, at Mebansville and Company's Shops.

Question, What kind of a school 7 .

Answer. A colored school, under the Society of Friends of Philadelphin:

Question, Were you visited at any time by men in disguise I If so, state briefly ab
what time and what they did,

Anzwer. On the evening of the 20th of November, 1869, I preached to {he colored
people at their request, during a revival which they had j there were some noises about
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the window during the evening; I went Home; at 12 o'clock at night something was

thrown on the roof of the hotse which waked myself’ and wite, and then a rail eame

aainst the'door and broke the lock § in enme five men; I wag rising from my hed;
two of them seized mo hy my legs and dragged me out of the door: soon two others
took me by the arntg, i four of thomn in that way carried me_in double-quick time

abont a mile nnd o hialf and set o down 'in a thicket mud began to beat me with hiek-

ory sticks; 1 felt relief theny for Lthonght they weronot golog to hang me; I felt threo

ows; the next day revealed 30 marks'on'my back ; I have the sears now ;- T fainted;
the fivst’ T know they kicked me in-the sitte and said, “ Got aip;” 1 oroso part way and

fell hack; they lifted mu apyand ong of them shaved my hadr close; one-half of it, and

with @ sponge painted-halt ot my face blaek; the smell-of the turpentine revived mo

they then stavted to go aways 1 osaid, * Friendy, will you tell me it T an newr any

house 27 ono of them eme back anid said, “Chis way is tlio voaid ;7 1 éould fiot walk';

they took e without my eérutehes; I tool i stick and hopped along till I canie to the

house s my wife was ont serenming for me up the rond; 1 ought to have stated that

they strnek her; she tried to tenr the mask from the face of one of then; I have got

the mustache that she tore away from his face; they struck her on the arms and

stepped on Lic feet, o ‘

Cuestion. How were they disgnised 7 , P

Ansicer. With tight elothing,something like a-clown with iorng,  They whi all
the timey trving to appaie like demons,  Before they whipped me théy stood arownd i
a cirele and gave wicarthly shricks and whistléd,  They went at word of command ;
they seemied “to widerstand their nisiniéss,  While they were emrrying e they said
they meant to rille this conntry. I asked them why they did this to me?  They said
“Hor teaching niggers and making them like white wen” They said they eame from
Chatham connty.  One of them was'leader, the other four carried me, . One was moro
Kind than therest. My koeo wag eallons ;T have a callous joint.  They pulled it out
straightand T seremmed. They told me to hush up (we were passing a house) or they
world hlow my hraing out, and they struck mo with o revolver over my eye-lid.  The
next moerning Dr. Moore, a member of the legisluture, came in and dressed the wound
with sticking-plaster so as to make it heal without showing. My head was cut in
other plices,

Ouestion, Was tiny other reason assigned for this treatment than what you havegiven?

Awuswer. No other reason, , )

Question, Had you taken any part in the politieal proceedings of the county-?

Ansiicer. Wellyat Mebansville,a year betore T was eleeted presidentof the Loyal League,
But there was no Loyal Leagne at the place where 1T was, and I had not heen president

“for one year, ) B ) ) - . ) :

Question. Had you taken any other part in the proccedings in the State or county ?

Avpswere None gt ally exeept when, colovéd men bought lnnd nid patd for'it, and did
not get any dewd, they would come to mo for advice; and I told them to pay no money
nntib they got the deed s not to pay part aidd havea promise,  Twas trying at the timo
to have a free-seliool systenvin operation for white childven and for black children,
also. T talked about it with leading men, The Friends had one school for whites and
one for colored in Company’s Shops,

Question, W hat heennme of your school-house ; wasit visited ?

Ansteer Wellp they ciame” arown'i6 that night, 1t had been disturbed by noises
the colored peaple said there were disguised men about it 1 did not pay much atten-
tion to that; they never disturbed e in the school,

Question, This attack on you was at your honse ?

Answer, Yos, siv, o o

Question. Were you compelled to leavie that neighhoiliood ?

Answeer, They told nie to cease teaching negioes, aind fo leave in ten days; T staid
twenty days; Tapplicd to Me. Belkunap, Seeretavy of the Inteviow for assistanee, and ho
sent me fonr soldiers, who staid with me twenty days, 1 arvrested fonr men at the end
of fen days for doig it, 1 wasthen able to go about,

Question, Did your know who they were? L ;

Aduswer. Not ecertainly s their voices werve familiar, and their size.  There were colored
men who said they watehed them home, with the vegalia under theiv arms, ‘The whole
villnge was iroused, It was getting light when they went home, and they were seen
with sometliing ander their arms, p .

Question, What beeame of the legal proccedings ?

Ansicer, Thoe justice had them acquitted; .

Question. 'T'hey were not hotid over to appear ?

Ansteers My evidence was given, but most-of the witnesses fled.

Questiong Was it in consequenco of this state of things that ymi left there?

Answer. Tt was; I could not stay there; my fumily would be disturbed all the while.

Question, What, was the state of publie sentiment produeed by these proceedings in
thal county; what was the sense of security ?

Answer, It mndo all the peoplo feel unsafe. - They said if I could not stay there thoy

10

.
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cotlldnot.  One white mati who had been whipped ¢ame to mo while I'was in bed, .He
lived about six mifles from' where I was. He was whipped for being o Union man,
and agitating Union prineiples. - : ( :

Question. Did theése persons sity anything of their political designs ¥

Answer. Nothing niore than {hieéy meant to rule the country—wanted me to under-
stand that they méant to mile the coubtry, o

Question. How. diil you tinderstand that—as political rule or by violence?

Answer, Well, by violende, T should understanid it—that it they could not rule by a
political majority they would rule atiyhow, The republicans were in the majority in
the ¢onntry at the time ; that agitatéd them more, I presume,

Question. How long did yt cli-that school §

Anneer. At Conipaniy’s Sh tanght six months, and at Mebaunsville one year, mak-
ing eighteen months in all in“Alaniiico County. '

Question. How were youw'supported:2... )

dnswers By the Fricuds of Philadelphia in part ; the colored peoplo themselves paid
on an average 88 o month thward the school.,

Question, That wasthe whole amount they paid ?

Answer, Yes, sir; it rngedfrom §5 to $13,

Question, The balance of your salury:was mitde up by the Friends ?

Answer, Yes, sir; the people ealeulated to pay ‘my board, the Friends to pay the sala-
ry; but the colored people did not quite do their part. , '

Question. If there is any otherduct within your knowledge bearing upon thoe degreo
of security of person and property, pléase state it ? .

Answer. My idea is that persons ave ot seeure it they undertake to teach the colored
people, or if they join a Loyal League, orif they vote therepublican ticket, I was thero
at the presidential eleetion, and'persony who voted for General Grant were not safo,

Question. How far do they intend that to apply ? ) ,

Answer, To that neighborhood ;I would not spealt of any other portion, T heard of
others, however, in “the sanie condition: - I only spenk of that county. I know they
had a Seymour clih there, and it was publicly known among all the peoplo that if
any one voted for Gritnt he was never to have any employment, or was to be turned off
it he was hired. But they did not carry out the threat.,  One man, George Mebano,
however, did carry it out.

Question, Weve you in the same physical condition when you were beaten that you
are now ? ‘ ‘

Ansiwer. Yes, sir.

By Mr, Bram: )

Question. You say you helobged to the Loyal League?

Answer, In New Jersey I didy and in Mebansville they chose me president of it.

Question. Is that a secret organization ?

Answeer. Yes, sirg it wvag. secret, but it did not amount to much when I was there;
there was not meh doné init.

Question, What was its object?

Answer, To seeure the eleetion of General Grant, when I was there, just before the
election—to eaise voters to have courage to go to the polls and vote.

Question. Did you take any oaths?

Answer.Well, yes; about the same as you do when you join the Odd Fellows, and
Good Templars, -

Question, 'T'ell us what oaths yvou took ?

Ansicer. The main thing was always to be true to the American Union, and to the
flag; to support it in all cases whatsoever. )

By the Coamyan:

Question. Can you repeat that oath ? ,

Ansicer. 1 could 1ot fully; but that was the main point—to he true to the Union, to
frown down the spirit of sccession wherever we saw it, and not to reveal any of tho
private matter of the order.

By Mr. Bran:

Question. You would not feel yourself, then, at iberty to reveal that?’ R

Ansteer, No, sir, not private matter theny it now I-do not know that I amunder the
obligition. T hardly know that the organizittion is in existence there now. I would nob
feel at liberty, perbaps, to reveal the private signs, passwords, and signals, in case of
danger; but the onth we took is not private. When we join the Sons of Temperance,
we would not be at liberty to reveal the grips and passwords,

Question, When was this League first established? -~ ¢

Ansiweer, It was a branch of the League at Raleigh, and that was conneeted with ono
here at Washington—tlhie same that extended all over the North, It first started about
the second year of the war. I.then belonged to one in New Jersey.

Question, When was it established in the South T
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Ansteer, I knew one in that county the second year after the war,

Question, Did you know of their existence prior to that in the North or South?

Anaier, No, sir—yes, sir, I heard that thers was one in North Caroling, when I be-
longed to one'in Virginia, - o

Question. When did you first go to North Carolina? -

Answer. I went to Mebansyille, in October, 1868,

Question. Was not this Loyal League established all over the South, before there was
anything heard of the Ku-Klux?

Answer, Yesgsir; 1think it wis, ‘ ,

Question. Was not the Ku-Klux established simply to antagonize the Loynl League ?

Ansmcers Welly it was so clainted by the papers; but Ido not know. It wasso claimed
by the Sentinel, - : o

Question. Did the Loyal League ever uso any violgnee, intimidation, or threats?

Answer, Noygirs never, - Yonng nien who belonged to it would say when a eolored
man voted the democeratic ticket, “ Let's have a time with him,”? but the sentiment of
the league world say, “ No, let him’ vote as ho pleases.”

Question, That is your own League?

Answeer. Yes, giv. . I'know one mun who lived right next door to onr League who did
vote the'democratic ticket, and we used our power over the yonn¥ members of the
League to let him alope, . .

Quiestion., Thero was a disposition to molest himi ¥ o ;

Answers Yes, sir; when he eaine to chiureh they wounld langh at him and make him
feel uncomfortable; would laighiat his children when they cune to school, and want
me to turn them out,  His children would come in erying sometimes, heeause the otlier
boys innoyed them, saying that their father was a conservative; as they ealleil him,
I told one of them to tell'tlie boy that he was a goodl répablican it his father wus
conservative, and he went ont smiling nt that. That is all the prosccution I knoiv of.

Question, You never heard that there was any intimidation used by the Loyal League

dAnswer, Noy sirg I aever did; as a body,

Question. You have heard that members have dono so?

Angweery Thave heard of particnlar instances where men have been abused somewhat
for voting the democeratie ticket, hut thers was no authority from the League, or frow
any organization, e - .

Question, You tirst went to North Carolina in 18681 ;

Ansver, That is to Mebansville; T was in Bdenfori the year after the war. - - -

Question. Do you remember to have heard anything said about the debt. of North
Caroling ; how it had bedn ineréased under the reconstruction of the government ?

Answer, Yes, sivg I heard that mentioned frequently.

Question. During the ¢lections was it much spoken of

Answer, Yesy by tho conservative party,

Question. Did they make use of it ay an argument against the other party 1

Answer, Yes, sirs against Governor Holden, frequently, -

Question, What was the general opinion expressed by them in reference to it ?

Ansiwer. Well, there were always two opinions, one party had one and the other
another,

Question. You speak of the demoerats and republicans ?

Ansiwers Yes, sir; tho democrats were unanimous in ‘the opinion that there had been
extravagance, ~ )

Ruestion. 'That the credit of the State had been injured, and the public moncy had
been squandered 7

Answer, Yes, sir.

(Question. How much’was the debt of the State under Governor Holden’s adniinistra-
tion? . : . o
Ansier. Well, I nover investigated it enough to know, but T always supposed that
the expenses necessarily were very great after the war, to start a new system ol edu-
cation and government.  I'always thonght, howoever, that there were somo wlio were
not trustworthy, who squandered the woney, as there always are in all governments,

Question. Was not there a very large appropriation in the State for internal improve-
ments'?-

Answer, Yes, sir for the Western Railroad,

Question, Andother railroads ?

Answeer, Yos, sir ; .

Question. Lo what amount, was the appropriation for these roads ?

Ansieer, 1 do not know ;-1 was not particularly interested in these mattors.

Question, All thess questions created considerablo feeling in tho election and caused
a great deal of excitement, did they not ?

Answer, Yes, sir,

By Mr, BAYARD
Qucstion. Wasg that a general tople of discussion ?
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Answer, Yes, sir on one sido; on the other sido tho elifef thing was freedom to voto
and to have sehools for all, and to bo secure in their homes,  That was the anxicty on
the other side, :

Question, Did the republican party sustain Governor 1olden during tho eampaign 1

Answer, Yes, sir, . :

Question. And the democrats assailed him on account of extravaganee and corruption ¢

Answer., Yes, sir,

Question, Was that about (he chief issne in the canvass—the one that was most dis-
cussed

Answer. Ontone sido that was bronght out; on the other side there wero other mat-
ters—their future frecdom,

Question, On the conservative side the chief topic was corruption ?

AAnswer. Yes, sivy that was the clyiet point,

By the Cramrman: .

Ouestion. DI you ever hear sueh wrongs or whippings as you have spoken of hecom-
ing the subject of political diseussion in the State !

Answer, Yes, sir, ‘

Question. 1low i the parties divide upon it?

Ansicer. Well, there were those who would say {hat theso whippings were only for
soma {lagrant offense—for barn-burning, or something like that; and some scourgings
that I heard of were for flagrant offenses; hut others I know were not, for 1 knew the
men.

By Mr. Bavarbp:

Question, Stato what the flagrant ofienses were for which these people were whipped,

Answer. Some who were Killed or shot in Alimance County were aceused of burning
barns,

Question, What other offenses ?

dnswer, Welly generally it was for some immorality which was never established or
known, ‘

Question, In regard {o women?

Answer, Yes, sit g going with-anotlier man's wife, or things of that sort.

Question, Ontrages commi{ted on white females, or threatening to conmit them?

Answeer. T never heavd of one of that kind i Alamanee County. - 1 have heard of an
outrage on it colored girl.  The boy, 1 helieve, was hang for comnilting it,

By the ClAIRMAN:

Question. When these wrongs heeame the subjeet of poiitical disenssion, how did the
partics divide npon Xhe question?  Where did they receive countenance and where
denunciation ?

Answer. Welly when the men were {o blame they said, “It is pretty well deserved;
Tet it gos” hat when'it was an innocent. man who had suflered, then they were exeited
mdl wonld abhor it, When it was a flagrant offense, they would justify it and say,
“He got his deserts.,”  That was the general feeling, -

Question. Do your know ol cases where the charges of flagrant offenses were made the
pretext for inflicting punishment ¢ ‘ .

Ansicer. Yes, siv, do—somae cases of that kind,

Question, Within your own knowledge ?

cngieer. In Ahe ense of alleged barn-burning in Alananee County. I do not know
that they did it.

Question, Do yon know whether charges of (that characler were made for the purpose
of sercening the real purpose for whieh the flogging was inflicted?

Answeer, Yes, suclt ¢harges were made when the person was not-guilty,  One colored
man was hung heeanse lie would not work fora certain white ludy,  Iu said he would
work where hie hked ) he was hung next day in Hillsboro.

.

By Mr. Bavano:
Question, What other ehnrge did they make?
Answeer, That he had insilted the lady and her daughter,
Question. Do you know whether he did or not? ;
Answers 1 do not know anything about ity but the coloréd people all beliove that it
was sinply heeauso ho vefitsed to work there any longer; and henee the sympathy was
with the colored lad that was hung.

By the CHAIRMAN;
Question, 1f there was a division of party sentiment about these wrongs, which party
condemned and which approved themm?
Answer, Welly the republican party of course were disposed to sustain tho person
that was supposed not to be guilty, The demoeratic or corservative party I never
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know to have any sympathy at all where a person was hung, There was no doubt on
their part that he was w villain and a scoundrel, ,

Quiestion. Do you attribute that to the stato of party feelifig; or to tho real belief of
the citizens thero as to whether tlie man was or was not gnilty of these offenses

Answer, It was the state of party feeling that would not excuse a colored man or a
Northern nian anyhow, or o Southern man who joined in with the Northern men, The
moment they did it, they were accounted scoundrels and villaing, although their lifo
was upright.

By Mr. BAyYARrb:

Question. Did you kiow of the case of a negro preacher named Parsley, who was
couvieted and ignow in jail with several other black nien 2

Answeer, For what offense ¥

Question, For Ku-Kluxing negroes, - ,

cAnsieer, T did héar somethitig about it,

Question, Are you aware of the fact that hie was indicted and convicted, and that ho
is now inprison with somo four orv five others ?

Answeer. Thave heard abont it, T think his son went to school to me in Company's
Shops, i taught school about eight miles from thero,

Question, Did you not know he was convicted of Ku-Kluxing people of his.own
color?

AAnsieer. Oh yes; he went with two white men.

CQuestion, Did you know him yourself'?

Jdnsweer. No, sire I knew his son. But this happened after I left, or rather the trial
was after I left.

Question, How many did he whip ? :

Answer, They went only to one man that night, that T Know of. My recollection is
that there were others whipped, aud the whipping led to the conviction of Parsley.

Question. You say yon did not know hifn personally ¢

Ansiwer, Noysivs but 1 knew his son, or a relative of his. I think it was his son,
Yes, 1 recolleet they made him own ity and his evideveo brought out others-—two
white men,

Question. Do you know of any other acts of violenee by colored men upon colored

wople ?
] .'I]nsu'vr, I donot, Otie of the men in the erowd thiat chastised mo siid he was o
neero; the one that had the most sympathy for'me and carriéd mo on his buek,  Ho
saied, “ T ana negro; that is the reason I have so mueh sympathy for youn” 1 pro-
tested against their earrying me'so radely, and he said, T will earry you better,” and
took me on hig shoulders,  He was the stondest of the lot. Tlo sail, “1 am a negro
myselly ind that is the reason I liko you so well, 1 will not see goun harmed.”  But L
do not think he was.

Question. Were the people you had arvested citizens of your own county !

Answer, Yes, siv right there at the Shops.  The men were watehed by the colored
people as they came home, and the sons of some of the men said theiv father was in
1t that was overheard by colored men standing in the grove where I was whipped,

Question. 'They heard white children speak about it ? ‘

Answer. Yes, sir,

Question, That was the testimony ?

cAnsweer, That was part of the testimony, I have a flag whieh they put up at the
end of the ten days, with. these words, ¢ Corliss and thoe negroes, Let the guilty
beware. Don't {ouwch——1Telll” It was trimmed with cerape, and the fignre of
collin was printed on it.

Question. \Where was that?

<dunswer. On the road from iy house to the school-houso.  Five men got off’ the eary
one night and put it up. That was the testimony of negroes who were around the train
waiching,  They went away again on the wmorning train,

Question. Whero did tho ears como {rom 7

Adwsweer, From Graham to Mebansville, and then vreturned,  They eamo about 10 o’clock,
and went back abont 2. ,

Question. These men you had arrested lived in your vicinity ¥ ,
Cdnswer, Yes, siv, I have letters from colored people saying that T had three of the
right ones; that they had confessed it sinco to individuals, "I have not been there
myself, N

Question. Before what justico did you take thiew ? , . ,

Answer, The justico at this place, Company’s Shopi; I do not know his name; he was
& Union man, and did all* he could, and so did” the postmaster,  Ho was feurtuly as he
told wme afterward, that if he decided for me ho would be troated in tho sune manner,

Question, How imany nogroes wers mombers of the Union Leaguo of which you wero
president 7 .

Answer. Abount forty ; but only eight or ten were very nctive,
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Question. What was the popnlation of blacks?
Answer. Thad ninety in my school ; nearly all belonged to it exeept one man, who
would not join it,

By Mr. Brar:

Question. You say Alamanco was a republican county 7

Answer. Yes, sivy by seven majority,

Question. 'The governor.of the State was of course a republican, then ?

cAnsieer, Yes, sir, )

Question, How did it happen that the minority under those cirenmstances could
intimidate you and othors? ,

Answer. ‘hey had the most power; they owned the land, - Thougli they wero in the
minority they hid “power, beeaitse they were violent in their demonsteations,  They
would go at night-and put o coflin at your door with the words written on it, “ To-day
alive, tocmorrow dead,” 1 knew a justico of the peace who had one put at his door.

Question, DI it frighten him muel ¢

Anseer, Ho talked of moving away to another furm§ T do not know whether he did
or not, I know colored men who went trembling to the polls to deposit their voto for
Graut ;- they werve afraid to do it I know others who did not vote at all, for fear of
being turned off or of injury.

Question. Where do you live now ?

Answer. In New Jersey.

Quextion. Did yon ever live in any of the manufacturing towns of the North ¢

Ansicer, T have lived in Philadelphia,

Question, Did you ever hear of persons having large manuficturing establishmenis
at the North controlling the votes of their men?

Answer, Yes, sir, ‘

Question, Threaten to turn them off'?

Amwesers Yes, sir; something like that,  In the presidentinl eleetion I have seen it,

Question, Seen thein turn thein oft'?

Answeer, They would threaten to do it, or to lower their wages; something of the kind,

Question, 1t is a common thing, is it not ? ;

dnsiwer. Well not 80 very common; but then it has been done; I have heard it talked
of—no severity used.

By Mr, Bavanp:

Question. You mean physical foree ?
Answer, No, siry they like the favor of their employer, and are very apt to go as tho

cmployer goes,
L

Wasmixaron, D, C., February 13, 1871,
Groraiz B, BERGEN sworn and examined,

By the Ciamyax:

Question, Where do you reside ? )

Ansicer. T am at present with my fumily, residing in Washington City,

Question, What is your eceupation?

Ansieers T am o lnwyer by profession,

Ruestion, Were you, at any time during the year 1770, lieutenant colonel under Colonel
Kirk, in commuand of the North Carolina State militin ?

Ansiter, T was, S (

Question, At what time did-you go there ?

Answer, I arvived in Raleigh on the 20th or the 21st of June, 1870,

Question, Were you placed in independent command of i portion of that militia ?

nswer, Yes, sir,

Question, Give us as briefly ns you can a statement of what occurred in that portion
of the State whero you were stationed,

Angier. 1 had ehavge of the comity of Alamanee; and arvested a number of the citi-
zens of that county by order of Governor Holden, and alinost every one whom I had'in
my canip mudo confession that he was o member of {the ovguiization known ns thoe Ku-
Klux Klan, and that the Klun had at several times committed outrages in that connty ;
that the ohjéet of the organization was to obtain supremacey over the negro race and to
displace the Republican party from power and to place in the ascendeney the conser-
vative party of the State of North Carolina, 3 ;

Question, There have been some stateiments made before this committed as to means
you used to obtain thosoe confessions; give us your own acconnt of them, . ,

Answer, 1 can simply sny that I mado the arrest of those men, bronght them into
camp, and -they confessed withont any difenlty. Thero have been soveral aflidavits
made in the Stute of North Carolina that I hung, tortured, and injured sevoral persons;
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but I thinlk it would he a difficult matter to show that ono man was injured by me, I
do not think I ever iujitred n' man while I was in tho State of North Carolina,
nestion. What nre the nanies of {hie persons who made those affiduvits ?

Ansiwer, Ono is named Lucien H. Murrity, L never spoke to him over five words in
my lifo, thut I recolleet. e mude pfildavit before his honor Judge Brooks, of the
United States district court in” North Caroling, that I hung lim iip, tortured him
and maltreated -him in every way, shiape, and forin, Now, T nover luid tllu,\v(gigllé
of my hiand upon that man; I never spoke five words to hiny, as ean bo elearly proved
by those who wero prisoners at the snme time,  Thero was anotlied man of tho niine
of William Patton, whom Mr, Turner alleged 1 had maltreated and hung up, - He after-
ward minde an allidavit that such was not the ¢nse, which was published in the Daily
Standard in Raléigh,  ‘There was also o mun by the namo of Rogers, I think, who made
an aflidavit that 1 had hang him up and tortured him. I nover intertered with him gx
the least. ’

Question, By what meang wero those confessions obtained of which you speak ?

Answeer, T suppose from fear of being tried by military court-martial, us it was gen-
erally undtrstood would be the caso after wo first camo to Alamaneo el Caswell
Counties,

Question, Do you know of any instance in which persons, while prisoners in your cus-
tody, were treided in the manner spoken of in those alidavits ¢

Ansiweer, 1 do not, b

Ruestion. What was the state of feeling among the people when you went there nsto
the seenrity of their persons and property in consequenco of the existence of this
orgnnization ?

Ansieer, T amonot safliciently well informed to answer that question.

Question, What did you find the feeling to be mmong that portion ot the people with
whom you eame in contaet ? ,

Awsicer, T tonnd that they felt ingecure; that is, the colored portion of the popula-
tion and those who took sides with the colored population.

Question. How long did you remuin there ?

Ansiwer. T was thero from two and a half to three months, Then I was arrested and
thrown iito jail nt Raleigh, s after I had béen in jail ninety-four days 1 was re-
leased by his honor Judgo Bowd upon a writ of habeas corpus, 1 then weait divect to
Danville, where I remained two days, when' 1 was arrested by a Novth Carolinian by
the name of Wiley, who lives in Caswell -County. 1 was run down by blood-hounds,
arvested, and takenw before the mayor of Danville,  After I had heen befors the miyor
nliuut an hour, an aflidavit and warrant were made out against me, but I was finally
relensed, . )

Question, Upon what chavges were you arvested at Danville

Answeer, Upon the elhirgo of larceny, of stealing o pistol from I A, Wiley, I was
ordered by Governor Holden to aveest Wiley, and at the time of his arvrest I ordered
that hig arms shonll ho taken from him,  He alleged in his aftldavit at Banvillo that
1 lind taken the pistol ; but when ho came to swear before the court he conld not posi-
tively state that he ad ever seen the pistol in my possession,

Question, While'in Alnmances County, were you acting in obedience to the orders of
the governor of tho State ? ,

Answer. Yes, sivg 1 fouind evidence in the county of Alumanee thit prohably two-
thirds of tlie white citizens of that coiinty were members ot the organization known
as the Kn-Klux Klan; at least, they told me so,

Question. From what information do you speak as to the purposes of that organiza-
tion in that connty ¢ ;

Answer. Frony the confessions of its own members,

Question. Confessions mude to you ! .

Ansieer, Yes, siv. 1 had the most of thoso confessions in writing; but they were after-
ward destroyed when Iowas arvested aimd taken down to Radeigh,

Question, Did any of them state to ybu any of the means used by them to intimidato
voters or to influence elections,

Answer, Yos, siv, » ‘

Question, \\‘finxit- was said by them on that subjeet?

Aunswer, That they nccomplished their ends by means of sconrging, whipping, hang-
ing and pwltrenting in-overy shape and-form,

euestion, What was the condition of affalrs when you left Almmanee County ' Was
this organizationin operation then, or hud fts operations censed ? -

Ansieer, 1 think its operntions had censed,

Question. Wero the operations of that order justificd by any portion of the popula-
tion there?

Answeer. Tt was justified by thoso who were members of the organization, and op-
posed by those who were not 3 and it was opposed by a great many who were netual
mentbers of the organization ¥

Question. What justification was given ?
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Answer, That it was in ovder to counteraet the operntions of an organization known
as the Union League, I believe, T do not know anything ibout that organization, I
am not wmember of any secret organization myself,  I'have heard of outrages having
been comiitted by the orgunization known as the Union League, but 1 know nothing
ag to the truthfiless of the nssertion, , ‘ '

Question: Where were yon living at the time you were commissioned as lieutenant
colonel of thig toree of State militia !}

Answer, Twas at (he time practicing Inw in the city of Washington, bhefore the United
States Conrt of Claims, N

Question. At whose reguest did yon aceept. that position ? v , ,

nseere AL the fime T owas practicing i this eityy I reccived severil elabms from
Colonel G W, Kirk, who was vesiding in Joneshoro, East Tennessee, which hie desived
e to prosectite; 1 took eharge of them, and-1 had beew at work on them for several
Mhys, when Major-Rollins,of this eity, received o communication froim Govérnor Holder,
requesting him to go to North Carolina, and {ake chavge of the troops” known as Stute
troops.  Major Rolling stated that he conld not an, and saw Kirk, who said he would
go.  Kirk said Lie wanted me to go amd assist hitn to ovganize the teoops, and I eon-
sented to gos o After Tarvvived therve, nathing would do hut that 1 shoukUremain; agd
as o rewiard {or-my services in obeying ovders, T reecived uinety-fony days' imprison-
ment in jailymnd six weeks” pav, Driving the time T owas incjail, T was not visited by
Governor Holden or any of his friends,  Several of my northern fricnds ¢ame to seeme,

Question. When you speak of being in jail, were you committed to await trial ?

Adwnsweer, Yes, sivy Twas conmmmitted to jail toawait teinl, 1 was in jail with twelve
negroes and fourteen white men,

Question, By whom were you commitfed ?

Answeers By the Uniteid States nuoshal,

Question, By what judge ! « .

Ansicer, The writ was taken ont of the United States eivenit court,

Question. Were you exauninied by a cominissioner !

dnswer, Nogsivg it was npon eevtain dilidavits, T was sued in the sam of S0,000
damages, by one Josinh Turner, jr., o gentleman by -the name off Seott, and another by
the name of Johin Rieh Ireland, for false arrest anil false imprisomment.,

Question, And you were committed for want of bail ?

Answer, Yes, sivg und T obelieve Judge Brooks issued aowrit against me to keep the
peace, binding me over in the s off £5,000 to keep the peace in North Carolina, upon
several atlidavits made gainst me ahleging that 1 had maltreated persotis, by Muray,
Rogers, and perbaps come others,

Question. Were those aftidavits made by persons whom you had arrested as memhbers
of the Ku-Klux Klan!?

Awsieer, Yes, sivg T did not arveest Josiale Tarner, jrg s oo member of the Kn-Klux
Klan., I do not know that he was o member of it 1 never had any evidenee of the
faet that he was,

By Mr. Bavanrp:

Question. Of what State are you a native?

dnswers New Jersey,

Question, Were yon over a eitizen of North Cavolina ? .

Answer. Lam not sufliciently well infored to answer that gquestion. T wastold by
Governor Holden that T was e eitizen of the Btate,after 1 had taken an onth to support
the constitution of the State of North Cavoling, .

Question, Did you take that oath when you dirst went down there to take servico
under him?

Ansieer, Yoes, sir,

Question, Was the period of your serviee there the only period of your residence in
that State at any time?

Answer, Yes, pivg L oever was in the State hefore. My family at that time was in
Joneshoro, Last Tennessee, where T had taken my wite tor her health,

Question, What is your age !

Answer. 1 am twenty-four years of age,

Quextion, How long were you in North Cavolina ? -

Anscer, 1T went there on the 20th of June, and left on the evening of the 2:3th ot No-
vember, 1870, ,

Question, How long did your opervations Inst there ns nn offieer of the militin 2

Answer, About two months and o halt's the balanee of the time T was in jail.

(%umlion. Do you say that you arve not cognizant that any person arvested by you was
maltreated ?

Ansieer, 1 do sy so, most emphatically,

Question, Neither by you nor by any of yonr command 1
Answeer. By neither,

Question. You are not cognizant of any such treatment t
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Answeer, T amnot, o,

Question, Did you ever hear that any person had heen so maltreated ?

Ansicer, Only through the sotiree [ have mentioned 3 1 wever hicird so from my own
men, from any of my own command; I'kiow nothing myself of the faet,

Question, Or of any extortion of testimony by fntimidation or actual violenco ¢

Answer. No, sir, ;

Question, Yo know nothing of that 1

Answer, No, siyy T do not, . ,

Question, Whitt, were your orderd from Governor Holden in respeet to arvest and trial ¥

Answers My orders woers'to arrest every man who was conneeted, or supposed to be
connected, with the organiziition known us the Ku-Klux Klan,

Question, "T'o' 0o what with them ¢

Ansteer, To hold thein subject to ovders of Governor Holden,

Question, Did youw ever have any orders for their trind in any way by military com-
mission ¢ ‘

Jusieer, T nover had any orders divectly to that effvet,

Question. Did you have any indirectly ?

Jasweer, 'There was a commission estahlishied at one time that is; a militnry court-
wartial, mmd my nume was pat upon it, U had iy name withdrawn, That i3 about
all 1 know of i, ,

Cuestion, Who conmposed that conimission, ng you nnderstood ?

Answer, 16 was composed of severad military officers of several counties of the State,
ranging feom bhrigadier geperal down to eaptain,

Question, CGives s their names, i yon ean,

Ansicer. 1 helieve a Colonel Clarke was named as the president 3 1 do not know the
other otivers,

Question, By whom was that commission ordeved 1

Awpsieer, By Governor Holiden,

Question. For whitt. purpose !

cnsweer, ‘Lo ey the prisoners who had cominitied those outrages,

Euestion, Prisoners captured by you in Alantnee and Caswell counties?

Answer, Yes, sir,

Question. By whom avere you paid 7

Answer, By the State treasnver,

Question, Did you organize the vegiment {o which yon were attached, or assist in or-
ganizing it.? o

Answers Tassisted in organizing it ?

GQuestion. Where were the men veernited !

duswer, Tu Western Novth Carolina,

Question. Who were they !

Awswer. Citizens of Western North Caroling,

Ouestion, Wore there any eitizens of ‘Tennesseo among them 1

Answer, There were some, 1 helicve; bt T was not suflieiently aequainted to know
who were and who were not from ‘Tennessee,

Question, You were astranger theve !

Jusieer, Comparatively astraniger,

(luestion, You were siot acquainted with the people of the State there till you went
there ! -

Juswer, No, sir, B , . -

Questioit, You say you were dischavged from jail by Judge Bond ?

Ansieer. Yes, sivg 1 was (ol so, Fnever saw the order of discharge,

Cuestion, How was the ovder applicd for?

cusweer, Uponw writ of hubeas corpus.

Question, Were you brought hefore him?

Answer, Yes, sirv, : § -

Ciestion, Who obtained that writ for you'?  Who was your agent 7

Adnsweer, T sent my  brother-in-law, Captain Winner, to Baltimore, to ascertain if
Judee Bond would come down and hear iy ense o nowrit of habeas corpus, citing
the faets of the ense. I helieve Captain Winner also bore a request from Governor
Holden and severnl othér gentlomen in North Carolina,

Question, To Judge Bond ?

Answer, Yes, sir,

Question, When did I hear your ease ? ;

Ansiwer, In Augrust, T think § to the best of my knowledge,

Question, Wers you arrested and imprisoned 1 Angust

Ansieer, Yes, Bir, ; L

Question, When were you discharged

Answer, Upon the 28th of November, T think ; upon the Inst Monday in November,

Cuestion, Did ha snspend his decision ol that time?

dnswer, 1 suppose ho did,
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Question. Do T understand you to say that in August Judge Bond heard your applica.
tion for a dischitrge upon & writ of habeas corpus ,

Angiver. Yes, sir,

Question. And he did not make the order for your dischargo until thoe following No-
vomber ¢ o e

Ansiwer, Yog, sii two and a hinlf or thrée monihs after 1 had been put in jail,

Question, How were you informed of yowr disehitvgo ¢

Answer, The deputy United States marshnl cme for me on the évening of the 28th
of Novembery I'think it wus {he 23th it was thelast Monday in Noveniber, e told
me that thie United States nashal desired to seo e, Neither of them had been pear
moe during all that tine, I went avonivd with him to the oflice of the United Starey
marshal, who told me lie had aw order-for iy discharge,

Question, At what time of the evening was that {

Answer, Between six and seven o'cloek.

Question. Upon what day of the week ?

Answer, Monday.

Question, Whoere did yoi go then?

Answer. T went aronnd town to see it T eould vaise soime money with which to get to
Danville. I sueeceeded in raising nine dollars, fook the cars and eame to Danville,
where I waited until T eould get sufliicient funds to enable me to get further.  In the
mean titme 1 was hunted down by blood-hounds, captured, taken before the mayor, and
discharged.

Question, Is Danville in North Carolina ?

Answer, No, sivy it is in Virginig, fowre miles from the Jine of Caswell Connty.

Question, Were you under arvest at the saane time under a eriminal ehurge as well as
undor ¢ivil snits for false imprisonment ?

Ansieer, Psiippose T was,

Question, By whom were yoit commitied ?

Answcer. By the United States marshal,

Question, Was it by the ovder of the United States commissioner, or the United States
distriet judge !

Anaieer. do not know 3 T never stopped to inguire. I thought it was the duty of
my fricnds to look alter my ense,

Cuestion, Were there any suits-agninst you in any of the State courts ?

Answer, 1 suppose thiers were,

Question, Were you under haily or committed in default of bail, in any of the State
conrts!

Ansiver. No, siv, Twas not. Tam positive of that, Tt was an hnpossibility to reach
me with a writ ot a Stato court while 1 was under arrest by order of a United States
court.

Question, Ave you aware whether writs were out ngainst you at the suits of citizens
of “‘ha State in the State conrts !

cdnmeer, T was tolil so,

Question, Was Judge Bond intormed of that?

Answer, 1 do not know,

Quection, Did any ohe appear before Judge Bond to contest your applieation for a dis-
charge upon writ of habeas corpus f

Answer, "There wero thres or four Tnwyers there upon the other side; and I'had fwo
or three lawyers.  Judge Mervitmian was upon the other side, and T think Judge Battlo
was upon the other side, though 1 am not positive ns to that, and there were one or
two more. )

Question, Were the parties present who had sued youn for falso arrest and imprison-
ment—"Turner il the others{

Ansieers T do not know,

Question, Was uny testimony heavd at all ?

Ausiweer. No, sir,

Question, None whatever?

Answer. Not in my f)l'csun(-(‘.

Question. Were alildavits read ?

Answer. Yes, sirv,

Question, ‘Those were all ngainst you ?

Answer, Yes, siv,

(fumli(m. Wero auny read in your behalf?

Answeer, Simply my own affldavit,

Question, 'That wad the only onel

Angwer, 1 think that was all,

Question, Thoso atlidavits alleged i1l treatment and false imprisonment by you?

Answer, Yes, sir,

Question, ‘That was the ground of holding you to bail ?

Answer, Yoy, sir,
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Question, There never was any further proceeding in the case?
Anwmeers Not to my knowledge?

Question, Until you were dischurged 1

Anseer, Yes, sir,

By the CHAmRMAN ¢

Question, Were there any trinls before this military commission of which you have
spoken? . 5

Ansteer. None at ally T think it never sut, .

(uestion, You spoke of the written confessions of the prisoners in your custody having
been destroyed. - By whom were they destroyed ¥ Did yon destroy them, or wers they
destroyed hy others 1

dnsiwer, Tleft them at the timo- in the courf-house in Graham, supposing, of coiirse
that they wonld bo properly taken eare o, After T had arrived at. Raleigh, and had
been injail for some time, Colonel Kivk was ordered to Raleigh and he left the pupery
at Graham, 1 do not know exucetly that they were destroyed; they were out of my
possession,

Question, You never heard of them afterward 1

Answer. No, siv, v ) )

Question, Were the suits of which yout have spoken instituted against you on the
ground that the orders of Governor Holden to you werve not justitied by the law, or
that you were proceeding ilegally vnder those orders ?

Answeer, They wera simply for fulse arvest and maltveatment of prisoners; that was
ahout the substauce, :

Question. Did they embrace botli gronnds, attacking the validity of the orders of
Governor Holden to you, and also attacking you for exceeding your orders in the dis-
charge of your duties?

Auswer. 1 presume they  did ) at least I took them so at the time,

By Mr. Bavarnp:
Question. Did you ever hear that Judge Bond filed any reasons for ordering your
discharge !
Jnsweer. Noy sivy I never saw any, if he did,

By the CHsmdMaN:

Question, What was the eharge npon which you were avrested at Danvillo ?

Answer, For stealing u pistol from Wiley.

Question. 'T'hat was after your discharge by Judge Bond ?

Ansiver, Yos, sir,

Question. You spoke ahout being hunted down by bloodhounds?  Were you outside
of the town of Danville 7 , o ,

Ansiweer, While T was in Danville T walked up the main stréet, niud met Witey there,
He eursed ine a little, and T do not know that I spoke very politely in returm, 1 think
he went before an aldermun, or the mayor of the town, and wade an afildavit aguinst
me, Some of my friends eamo to mo and told we that 1 had better leave town and get
ottt oft Danmville, and thiey would meet nie ontsida of tho town aind farnish e 4 horso
to tike me over to Lyvnehburg, I went aeross the bridge over Dan River, and was mot
by two policemen, who asked mie my namo, I told them my name was registered at
the hotel ns B, George,  They salil they were looking for a fellow of the name of Borger,
who had committed somo oitrage in North Cavolinn, and was believed to be a fugitive
from justice. I denied being the nan, and told them they had no vight to arvest mo
in Virginin, One ot them said he would go and bring a man who knew me, and the
other condd stay with me and Keep me from eseaping. . After the other had got away-
smne distanee; T rin away from theother one and got into n field whaore there was somo
high grass and seéveted mysell, - After T had beer thers for perhaps o halt an hour, I
hearid some dogs in the wouods and supposed they were hunting for gatne, I got on my
hands and knees and erawled aguarter ov a half oo miley until Lot to n brickyard, whero
I saw a negro who told moe that theroe were bloodhounds wponmy track, and thih I had
hetter mnke for some (ree, 1 made for a tres, but before T got upinto it the dogs camo
up to me, and o man by the nane of Graves eatne ap and commanded hie to surrender.,
OF conrse T sitrrendered, as 1 had no arms with e, and 1 was then taken to Danville,

Question, "That was the wiy you were arrested ¢

Anmeer, Yes, siv; no warrant was served on mo until I had been in the mayor’s office
fully an hour.

By My, BAYARD ¢
. Question, How muny men did you arrest without warrants in Caswell and Alamance
Counties ?
dnawer, Do you mean by tho ovder of Governor Holden ?
Question. You say you arrested persons by his orders; how did youw arrost thom 1
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Answer. 1sent out and had then brought in; whenever we ascertained that a citizen
of thit counfy was nnember of this so-ealled Ku-Klux Klan, wo sent imen out and had
him hronght in.

Question, 10 yow arvest men whether they were or were not members of the organ-
ization.?

Ansiwer, Tdonot think Iarvested aman-there who proved not to be a member of that
organization,

Question, Did yon arvest Josinh Turner, jr?

cAnsirer, Yes, sir, »

Cuestion, Was he o member of the organization ?

Ausweer, U avrested him beceanse Governor Holden ordered his arrest 5 T had to obey
his orders.

Question. You arrested those men at your diseretion ?

dnswer. Yes, sir

Question, Without warrants ?

Awsieers Yes,sivs T thonght your gquestion was in reference to eitizens of Alumanco
Connty.,

Question, T referred to Almnanee and Caswell Comities, where you wero stationed,

Ansieers Tawas in Caswell Connty but o finw days,

Question, What was the strength of your comnmninil ?

Answeer. Sanictimes, at Conijiitny's Shops, 1 had as many as four hundred men; then
again, sometimes, b would not liave morve than ifteen men,

Question, Tow many men, altogether, hiel Kirk ?

Avnsweer. Tdo not konow that 1 ocan fell the exaet nnmber: between six and seven
hundred, T think,

Question, Did you take the prisoners to Raleigh when they were diseharged by Judgo
Brooks !

Ansiwer. Not when they were discharged by Judge Brooks, but when they were dis-
sharged by Chiet Justice Peayson,

Question, How mnny did you take down ?

dnsicer, Twelve or fourtecn—probably more.

Question, Woere they all discharvged !

cnswers T oeaiiot tell thaty theve was one man, of the natie of Gray, who was
charged with buriing u school-house in Almnnnee : e was thrown in prison hecanse
he could not give baily he was in the some jail withomes T understand that he has
bheen released lTately § another man, Wiley, charged with the murder of Stephens, in
the connty of Caswell, was ordeved to give houd to the amount of several thottsand
dollars, and others were obliged 16 give bonds,

Question.” A1) those aets with which those men were charged oeenrred prior {o your
going into the State?

Answer. Yos, siv, , .

Question, \Were you present at any eleetion in {he State?

Answer, Twas over at the court-house in Graham tor ahout tive minntes during an
election, .

Question. You have spoken of the intimidation of voters !

smweer. Yes, sit,

Question, And other actg of that kind ?

Answeer. Yos, sir,

Question, Hidd you auy personal knowledge of those aets, or was your information in
regard to then merely hearvsay { A

Answer, Hoeavsay, and from confessions made to me,

Question, You were never in this Stato hefore this three months' servico there?

Answer. No, sir,

Question. . And you have not bheen there sinee ?

Angiver. No, giv,

Question. You hud no personal knowledge of the people there ?

Answer, No, sir,

Question, And what you have stated about theiv acts is hased upon information de-
rived from othérs?

Answer. Yes, sir,

By Mr. Br.ar:

Question. Do you justify yourself for your acts under the authority of Iolden?

Ansieer, T Ao,

Question, What was vonr anxiety to eseape Trom North Caroling, whero you werd
arraigned to be tried for those aets

Aunsreer. T had no partieilar desire to lie in prison any longer, and I was anxious to
get to my fanily,

Question. Ave you golng hack to stand n trinl on those charges ?

nswer. I do not think 1 will, though at the same time 1 do not think they conld do
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anything with me. - Everything I did was done according to tho orders of Governor
HWolden,  Hoe made eevtain representationy to me; it they were false, that is not my
fandt, . After T was thrown into prison Governor Holden did not come near e, [ saw
him but onee during the time I was in joil, and yet I was within sounit of his dinner
bell the wholo time,

By Mv, Bayann:

()u;s{lion. Did hie, according to your knowledge, undertake to repudinte your acts
at al L ;

Ansiver, Not tormy knowledge s except that T seein the replication he hasfild in the
mat ter of his ipeachinent he denies having ordeved mo to arvest Jusinh Turner, jr,

Question, Did he order it ¢

Anseer, He did, most emphiatically, : ‘

Question, Were his orders to you genernlly verhal or written ? ;

Anseery 'They were generally verbal, He simply ordered e to arvest men of whom
I had any evidenee at all that they were members of the m'guni'/.ntiuuTlinm\‘n'ns the
Ku-Kinx Klai, and to hold them until 1 had further orders trom hiney whieh 1 did.,

Onestion, Did aey writs ol habeas corpus come to you while you were there?

Answir, Nevor fo e, -

Ouestion, None were ever served on you?

Answeer, No, sir,

Quextion, Was any attempt ever made, that you know of) to serve them on you ?

Answers Not upon me,

Ouestion, T'o whon were they direeted 7

AAnswer, "To Coloneél Kivk, T think,

Question, And lie mitde all the veplies?

AAnswer. T presume he did,

Question, Tow {ong had you known Kirk before you took command under him?

nsweery TAvst met Colonel Kivk in Decewbery 1869,

Caestion, Where !

hasweer, InJoneshoro, Bast Tennessee,

Quextion. That was his residence ?

Ansiwer, That was his vesidence at that time,

Cuestion, Had you ever had anything to do with him hefore, or known of him
hefore ?

Answer. No, sivy and T oregret execedingly that I ever had anything to do with him
sinee,

By My, Brati:

COuestion, Why ! ‘ , : '

Ansieer. Welly tor several reasons, Tdonot think Twould ever have heen injjail if' T had
never methimg I do not think [ wonld ever have lost my practice ift T had never met
him 3 and there ave several othier reasons, too nintierons to mention,

Ouestion, Were you sworn into servico in North Cavolina !

Ansieer, Yos, sir,

Question, What was the oath?

Answer. o support the Constitution of the United States, and the constitution of
the State of North Caroling, and to obey all orders, of my superior; similar to any
other military oath.

Question, To obey a1l legal orders, yortmean ?

Answere Al ovders romn saperior ollicer,

Ouestion, A1l logal ovders, is the militavy oath,

Auseer, T do not think thie phvase © legal orders” was in the oath I think T would
have remembered it i1F 3t had heen,

Question. Do you know that you eannot protect yonrself for an illegal act by alleg-
ing an illegil order ? )

Answer, Yog, siy, kiow that, But it is natwiel for an inferior oflicer to supposo
that he wonld veceive nothing but legal orders from a superior ofticer,

Question, That might have been the inference with you, but it is not always the ease,
however,

Answer. T cannot say about that.

Wastizarox, D, C., February 13, 1871,
Wirrray IT. Barrn sworn and examined,
By the ClaAmIAN:

Question. Stute your residence and ocenpition. .

Answer, T am a vesident of Raleigh, Novth Carolina, My oceupation is that of law-
yer, practicing in the sitpreme and Fedoral eonvty, )

_ Question. How long have you heen a citizen of North Carolina, and what publie posi-

tion have you filled v
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Answer. I was born in Edgerton County, in 1802, In 1840 T was appointed judge of
the superior court, and remainied on the boneh for 12 years, I was t‘icin‘plucml on the
bench of* the supreme court, whero 1 remainéd 16 years, T was on the beneh at the
beginning of the late war and remained there during the war.  In 1865 the oftices of
all'the judges wers declared vaerut, 1 was veélected jiidge of the supreme court again,
and remained there till the adoption of the constitution.

Qm':l:’on. Were you o candidate under the new constitution for judge of the supremo
cotirt

].‘hrm;'cr. My nanie was before the people under the new constitution, but I was noi
electudt,

Question, Thirongh what portion of the State do yon travel in the discharge of youe
professional dutics now {

Answer, 1 ain conlined entively-to the city of Raleigh: T am practicing law with my
two sons a8 partners; one of them was forner treasurer of the State. We never leave
the city ut all, ,

Question. Tave yon sufticient aequaintanee with the conditiont of the State to testify
a8 to the sense of seenrity. that is felt by the people as to their persons and property in
other portions than that' in which you-humediately reside ?

Anmeer. Well, sivy 1 have fnformation derived from newspipers and reports from
others, and unless I any grently mistaken thére is nogeneral feeling of scenvity for per-
son ancd property tivoughout the State. I some localitios there may hive heen ont-
rages committed. In his Inst message, Governor Holden decelared, us ho had done hefore
by proelivmation, that there was genernl peace and seeurity prevailing throughout the
state,  He congratulated the legislature upon that faet. )

Question, Thuve you any kunowledgo of the existence of any seeret organization in the
Stato which interferes with the scentity of person and property in ity operations?

Ansieer. None of my own knowledge,

Question. Trom the general information of which you have spoken, i you have any
belief on that subject, state what it is

Answer.s T have a belief. T was one of the counsel for the applicants for writs of
habeas corpiis betore the ehief justice of the supréme coirt of North Carolina, nnd also
before Judgd Brooks of the United States court for the distriet of Novth Carvolina,

Question, Were those applieations made at the instuneo of persons arvested or wers
they volunteered ? , :

dngweer. They were made at the instance of the persons arvested,. I and several other
gentlemen were employed as coungel to prosecute their eases. 1 was also counsel after
Judge Brooks released all who had been tuken by Colonel Kivk and his troops, 1 was
counsel for those who were'takein by beneh wayrants issued by Chidef Justice Pearson,
and brouglit before him and Judges Dick and Settle, In that way I acquiredall the
knowledge I possess,  Prior to that time I had heard of the name Ku-Klux, but 1 did not
know the name of a single order,  In that investigation I learned that there wero dif-
ferent, Grders ealled by (he general name of Ku-Klux, and also that there was an order
called the Union League. The fatter was comjosed mainly of colored persons; por-
tions of the white people, I think, were also members of it,  There was an order of the
Ku-Klux ealled the White Brotherhood, I believe, and snother 1 think was called the
Invisible Empire, , : ;

Queslion. From the evidence disclosed on that examination, were you satistied of the
exiskenco of the orders kitown ug the Invisible Empive wnd White Brotherhood?

Angicer. 1 wis not so well satisfled dbout the Invisible Ewpire, but about thie Whito
Brotherhood there: was no sort of’ doubt. ’ .~

Question. What did the evidence disclose to you to be tho purpoese of thoe Whito
Brotherhood, and tho means by which its purposs was to be acecomplished ?

Ansiers In answering that guestion permit me to state that thers was another
order, tlio ono to which I have alveady alluded, called the Union Lengue, which T
believe was formed originally for political purposes and for politieal purposes only;
and Lthink theso others were formad for the sanie parpose, to counteraet the efloct of
the Unfon Leagues, ‘That was the impression mads on my mind by all the evidenco
which I henrd, . In their origin 1 believe neither of thein was intended to aceomplish
any violation of Taw, but as they were composed of very large numbers of rash and
violennt men, T am satisfied both of them did comnmit great violations of Inw, 1 am sat-
isfled thint these leagues and these elans or eamps, as they wero called, were the means
by which theso lawless nets were accomplished, -

Question, Did the evidence disclose any instance in which members of the Union
League had committed violeneo to the extent of personal injury ¥ If so, give us the
instances, . ; :

Angiweer, Well, sir, I am not sure that I can name any instance, but I am satisficd that
tho evidenco showed that {mmons helonging to those lengiies committed tho erimes of
arson, stealing, &c., but whether they wore prompted by the leagues I do not know.

Question. Namo any instunce in which thoe evidence showed cerimes of that charactor
committed by different members of the League, or by its order, or with its countenunce f
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Ansteer, T do not think I can nanie any partienlar one§ I.wassatisfied, though, that
there werd-honses burned in the cotinties of Alumance, Orange: Wiike, ant® Chathan, I
have a paper in my pocket now thit speaks of tho conviction lately of divers persong
who forfnerly helonged to those leagues. Whether they were unluwiul combinations
that committed that act and they were mado in'the leagues, I'do not know.

CQuestion, In what county was that !

Answer, In Chatham County.,

Cuestion, Wero they colored men who were convieted f

.-]]nmm'. Yes, sir; Lefore a court held by Judge Tourgee ; prosecuted by Solicitor
Bulla, : o

Question. Tor wrongs inflieted npon othor* colored men ? L

Ansieer, No, siv g for biening biarns and stables belonging to white men, If the nawa-
paper veport is true, there was a regulur-organized plan; certaite persons wero fixed
upon to set fira to the baildings; and anotlior set were designated to stand arownd, and
when the owner came ont to attempt to extinguish the tlanes, they were to shoot at
him. This I learned from newspaper reports sincee I acted as counsel in the enses ve-
ferred to,

Ouestion, From the evidence diselosed in the eximmination in which you were conn-
sel, are you satisfied of the connnission of ‘personal” injuries and of muvder, either by
individunl members of what is populurly known as the Kn-Klux Klan, or by its order
or with its countenance? It so, give us the instancees,

Ansieer, T was satistied fromi the testimony that thiey were guilty of violations of law,
whipping negroes charged with varvions offénses,  One was for a gross insalt fo a white
Luly, avother was for stealing, and another for harn-buvning,  They were disgnised,
aud were, no doubt, aeting as Kn-Klnx s T way satistied of that. There was a man
muned Outlaw hanged -in the town ot Graham,  ‘Che evidenee showed that hie was
Ianged by o large body of men disguised, but no witness could tell who they were, or
whether any one of them ways o member of the Klu-Klux Kl Bat the general im-
pression was that they were, , ,

Question, Was there not-testimony there which showed that persons had admitted to
Mr. Boyd thit they were present at the exeention of Outlaw ¢

Answer, Well, sivy acceording to my recolleetion, the nearest he came to prove it was
that some inan said he slept with soinchody who wis present at the hinging,

Question, Do you remetnbier Boyd testifving that noman ninbed Biadshaw, whom he
knew to be a member of the orgamzation, had spoken to him ot the military oflicers
having the nates of sixteen of them who were present at-the hanging ¢

Ansicer, T eannot remeniber distinetly, 1 recolleet that the nane of Bradshaw wais
mentioned, aud that Mr. Boyd was exmnined at length, but I canuot remember the do-
tails,

By Mv. Bayanrp:

Question, Did you prepare a report of the trials ?

Anseer, Yes, sir, _

Question. Have you a copy of it with you? ,

Answer, 1 did not pi‘clmru n report of all the evidence before Justice Pearson, Judgo
Rrooks, and Judge Bond.  There is a veport in the doctments aceompanying the mes-
sage of Governor Holden, that contains about us muceh as I ean state,

By the CriamyraN:

Question, From the whole of the testimony addoeed in the ease, hnve you auy doubt
about the mrder of Outlaw having been ordered and committed by the Ku-Klux or-
ganization { _

Angweer: That is my impression—that 1t was,

Cuestion, What canse, it any, was given to justify that murder?

Ansieer, It was suid that, he ‘had shot at a pureel of Ku-Klux who were passing
through the town of Graham. That was a rumor; 1T do-not know whether it was true,

Question. That was the only eanse assigned ! ;

dusmweer. That was the only canse I recolleet having been assigned.

Cuestion. You have spoken of theconvietion of eertain persons, as annotineed in tho
papers: were any of the men tried hind ¢onvieted of the haniging of Outlaw /

Answeer, They have not,  The impression on iy miud is that only ohe hus ever been
identified, exeopt one or two who were snspected, who have fled the country.

Question. Has anybody been arrested for the hanging of Outlaw ?

Angwer. T do not think there has; I believe the ouly ones they could fix upon with
any sort of certainty have fled the country.

Question. Have you any knowledge of the avrest, trial, and conviction of any poersons
charged with having committed these ontrages ns members of the Ku-Klux organiza-
tion 1 ‘

Answer, There are o good many of them now bound over to court in Alamanco
County, ready to stand trial,
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Question, Tlins fur hos thereibeen any conviction in tho State of North Carolina

Anmeers T donot think iy have been eonvieted as yot; but the testimony that was
produced before these jitdges, by whieli severnl were hotind over to court in Alamance
County, was certabily stflicient to produee their convietion,

Question. Have there not been minncrons trials of these persons, and as a general rulo
has not-tho defehke been an alibiy, whicl has been proved by those who were alleged to
he menthers of the order? , ,

Answeer, 1 do-hot know that fact well enongli-to justify me in giving an opinion,

GQuistion, Do yourknow i through the nowspaper veports? -

Ansiweer, 1 Kiiow that hins been charged, but 1 do not kinow; I have not heard it with
sufifeient distinetness to sny whetheritis so, ,

Question. Did the ‘evidence in the investigation to which you have alluded satisfy
you that the metmbers of the organization ‘are hound to sustain each other to the ox-
tent of perjury when they are charged with offenses ¢ : R ,

Angeer, Tt did not, siv.” If you will look at the report, yorowill find that, althougli
one or two niny hiave gone that leheth onie of them by the name of Lotig, who was
proved to be i very bad mia, id who hias sinee fled the country one by the nune of
Tickell, whodeknowlddaed that he belanged to the White Brotheriond, after having
been made apparently to_admit this thing, upon eross-examination said that he did
not consider the onth'of the White Brotlierhood” binding, as against his oath in conrt,
1 =aw that he way an honest man, and 1 eotmiienced eross-examining him, 1 saw that
he had been confused, so asked T soine questions to put hilnat case, Then T asked
him it he lind not voted since 162, Le said he had, 1 asked him it Tie had not reg-
isterad. e said hie had, - 1 asked him it e was not sworn when ho registeved, o
said he was, 1 asked himhow he was sworn, He said on the Holy Evangelist of
Almighty God. e had been asked what oth he took as o moember of the White
Brothertiood, and he recolleeted very little about il, and said that the man who ad-
ministered it did not Know mwuceh about it; but he shid he was sworn hy-the uplifted
hund, I then asked him distinetly, “ Do yon consider the oath which yon tool in that
wiiy, as o menber of the White Brotherhood, as binding you to violate the oath which
you tuke when you swear upon the Holy Bvangelist ol Almighty God 2 1e said he
did not. ‘Then the withess who was exapined nextion his eross-examination browught
out precisely the satna testiviony. I asked him distinetly, “IF you were on a jury, and
a member of the White Drotherliood were on trind, and it was elenvly proved that he
wis guilty by the evidetiee, and the man should eall out 1o you CShiloh,’ the sign of
distress, wounld you feel bound by your oath as i member of the White Brotherhood to
nequit that win contravy (o the law and evidenee ¢ 1o said he would wot. Then he
said he felt botind Lo obey his superior ofticers; and T asked hit it that obligation ex-
tended fo compelling him to violate the law and Kill a e He said it didnot, 1
understond fFom both these witnesses that they did not feel themselves b to ohey
that ot in prefivenee to the outh they might take on the Holy Evangelist, sd did
not feel themselves hound to do anything that violated the lnws of the country,

Question: Did he wiike a difference between the sanetity of the oath on the Holy
Evangelist wind the oatly wigh the uplifted hand ?

Answer, Yes, sird he considered that more binding taken on the Holy Fvangeligt,

Question. 'The ditterence then consisted in the form of the oath, in his mind, 1 it
was reversed, and he hiad been sworn'in conrt by the uplifted hand, but in the White
Brotherhood by the Holy BEvangelist, he would have considered the latter more hind-
ing of the two. ,

Answeer, As ove hinding, that is my recollection of it. o .

Ouestion, 'T'heny it T understand youn, you say that it woukl depend upon the opinion
of the individiinl meinber as to the velative sunctity of the two oaths he had taken,
whether the oath of the ovder was superior to the oath in a court of justice.

Answer, Simply this, that having swori on the Holy Evangeélist in Inavful matter,
he did not eoisider {he oith he took in the White Brotherhood as hinding.

Question; Weré there not meiibers of” the order who testified that their oathin the
order would bind themn toprotect cacli other?

Answer. T think Mr: Long did,

Question, 'I'o protect each other on juries or as witnesses 7

Ausiwer, T-think he so testificd; and it is possible Mr., Boyd may havoe gone somewlhat
to that extent. I wm not sure how far he did go.

Question. Then your opinion is founded upon the confidence you had in Tickell's
testimony instead of that of tho other witnesses ¢

Answer, T discovered that he was an honest man, though a witness for tho State, [
was perfectly willing to trust him and ask him this question upon cross-examination,

By Mr, CILANDLER ¢

Question. How is the fact in your State; do not somo swear by the uplifted hand 7
Answer, Yes, siv; but the other is an equally solemn oath.
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Question, Do you yourself regard it as any different whether o man swears by the
uplifted hand or otlierwiso?

Answer, Certainly not, ]

By the CHAIRMAN: ‘

Question. Wonld it not very mineh underniine your confidence in o mau to find him
wetting ridCof thie obligitioit of an onth Ly such a distincetion'§ o
" ddnswer, 1 do not think Tickell had any such idea in his lidad,~ If he bail been asked
to swear with' tho uplifted hand—which is a very solemn giath—1 bhetieve he would
have made the same answer he did,  But he felt that the obligation ta obey the lnws
of the Stato wus superior to any onth he took as @ member ot the White Brotherhood.

By Mr. CHANDLER:

Question. Is not the form of oath regarvded with equal solemnity by gentlemen of
intelligence in your State ¥

Answer. Certainly oour laws allow tho oath to bo taken on the Holy Ivangelist or
with the uplifted hand,

Question. Or by afiirmation ?

Answer. By Quakers only. It is of equal sanctity, and precisely the same pennlty
follows its violation.

By the CuarMaN:

Question, Then, from the whole of the examination, you have no doubt of the exist-
ence of the order in that ¢ounty ? ’

Answer. T have none in the world,

Question. And that whipping ot individuals and the murder of Outlaw were done by
the order and by its members ¢ ‘

Ansiwer, T beliove that Ontlaw was hanged by them; but 1 think there was no proof
in the ease in which I was concerned to satisty any court to whom it would bo sub-
mitted, 1 think it is highly probable ha was hanged by the Ku-Klux.  In the caso of
Stevens, which made niore noise than any other, I am perfectly satisfied ho was not
killed from any politicul motive whatever,

(eestion. In the cotnties where the organization existed, as testified in the examina-
tion you made, do you believe that justice could be administered against its members
in the civil courts? ,

Answer: Wellysiv, T know of nothing that would lead me to believe that put an
honest man on the jury in Alumance or any other county in the State

Question. My question iy, where the organization exists to'the extéit it was proven
in Alnfnanco County, do’ you -believe justics conld be administered against o mombor
on trial before aeivil tribunal? ,

Answer. 1 belicve there wottld be some men who would be very likely to act'in ac-
cordanee with the wishes of their ordery bit anian who had a proper sense of his oath
and duty would convict a member of the White Brotherhood ay soon as he would any
other person,  That is as fir as T ean give an answer to the question, N

Ouestion. I you yourself hid been the subject of an ontrage committed by them,
andl the perpetrators weére'on trial, would you feel at all seenre that justice could bo-
obtained against them in that county?

Angieer, Well; 1 should have my doubts whether they could not pack o jury whos
world acqnit them, ,

Question, 11 the sherift of the connty were a member of the organization, would it
not be in his power to so control the jury as to prevent a convietion?

Angwer. Undoubtedly, if he was a dishonest man'; but if he was an honest man, 1 do
not think he would. o

Question, Do you confine your knowledyge of the organization and the state of society
there to the intormation derived: from youy investigations, or have you such informa-
tion as to be able to give your beliet as to the rest of "the State v

Ansiver, However it may have heen two years ago, I believe now that a good many
have fled from the county of Almmnnnee who feared justice, and have left the State. L
have heard of several.

Question. That were supposed to belong to the order?

Answer, Yos, sir, . ‘ o

Question. Has there heen any difference of opinion among the members of the two
politieal parties, as to the manner in which they view the procecdings of this organiza-
tion 7 In other words, it either party justify it, which is it and it either party con:
demims it, which is'it? ~Or hag it heen the subjeet of justifiention ov cotndemnation by
parties ? : , ‘ .

Answer. Well, sir, there are some men, I have no doubt, that do in some degreo
Justity them, but the respeetable portion of all parties condemn them,  IF you will
permit mey, [will show you what my own opiniont was, as published in o speeeh of
mine, which appears in the Daily Sentinel of October 7, 1870

“The evunsel on the other side havo been pleased to say a great doal about the Ku-.

11
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Klux and_ their doings; they have charged them with plotting for the overthrow of
the Governineiit.  Sirs, whatever elso they havoe proved, they have not produeed o
particle of evidened to prove that charge, I admit they have shown, if their evidence
is o be Nelleved, that members of the Ko-Klux Klan have committed one act of arson
and five or six of whipping.” ,

Probahly T did not state quite as many as there were, ;

“ndmit that all these cases were violations ot Taw, and the persons guilty of thicm
ought to be piinished for thém, T am ag mueh opposed to the, Kin-Kiux as anyhody '
1 am opposed (o all seeret politien! associ ions, whetlier White Brotherlioods, Union
Leaguers, or any other of the like kindy and i’ I had the making of' the law, I woulid
enact thit all sineh seevet societies were erinmiualy and thit the menibers of them should
be Halile to puiishment. T have never belonged to bat one seeret society, and thit
was o literary one, the Dialeetie Soeiety, at Chapel THH. With the exception of o few
henevoleit societies, such as the Masons, Odd Fellows, and the like, T would suppress
all others,”

Question, On what ocension was that speech made? ,

Answer, Josinh Tuvner, jr, was taken up by o body of Kirk's men in the town of
Hillshoro, when Alamanee and Caswell Counties wero deelived in insuiveetion,  1le
Tled an aftidavit of the fuet, and applicd to their honors, Judges Dick and Settle, for
a benel wirrant. against Governor Helden, Colonels Kivk and Bergen. The judges
requested the connsel to atgue the question—iirst, whether a warrant conld be issued
agraiiist Governor Holdens and secondly, whetlier Colonels Kivk and Bergen could be
staken anywhiere else excepi tin those coanties. Mr, Bailey argned i on one side and |
un the other—hotli as amici cuzin,

Question, Did this man who was the sulijeet of the arvest in recard (o which this
specelr was delivered, cither apologize for oy justify the proceedings ol the Ku-Klux in
his paper? )

Anseeer, Wellysivg, THhinkir you vead the Sentinel you wiil find that he hias denouieed
them on difterent oceasions s bt the chiorge against hinewas that he did not denouniee
them in good faith ' did not. denounce them as strongly as he onght to have done.
Whether that is true or not I leave to others (o judge,

Question, e lives in your town £ k

Ansieer, e lives in Hillshoro, but pablishes his paper in Rateigh,

Cuestion, 1a his public atteranees, did he apologize for the doings of the Ku-Klux ?

cnswery e did s his paper generalls denounees the vielietions of Tuw by the Kn-Klux;
hat at the sane time he intimates that they were prompted by the doings of the Union
Leaguers,  In that way he muay have left the impression that it was some sort of
apology,

By My, Bavanrn:
Question, Thut they were refalintions?
Ansieer, Yes, sir,

By Mo Ny

Question, Did the Union Leagne wear disanises ?

dnsiwer. 1 really do not know,

Question, Did i ever appear in any investigation that they disguised themselves ?

Answer, 1 do not reeolleet that it did, .

Question, How was it in regard (o the Kn-Klax?

AAwswor, O they had disguises, .

taoestion. Doserilue i yon ean their equipage,

Adnsieer, N lwrge white sheet with oo mask over the face and something like horns at
the top, intended to tereify,

By M, Bavanrnp:

Question, Did you ever see one !

Ansirers YE5; 5105 we hind one, One of them said they wore them at the time they
initinteéd new menhies, (o prevent theéir knowineg v-he they wereo Having these dis-
setiises, 1 have no donbit in the workl that they wore prompted to convert themselves
thto vigiliog comnittees and ponish evinges, Those were the violitions o Taw alhided
to in my speeeh, I none of the investigations was it proved that o single thing had
been done with n view to produee any politieal efivet,

By Mvr. Ny

Question, Was there any evidence that showed that (he Ku-Klnx Klan committed
uny depradations tpon tiny one exeept those that helonged to the Union party {

Awsicers o not aware that there wass T do not think there was,

testion, No evidenee appeared showing that they committed any ontrage upon prer-
g0y who aeted with them politieally !

Answer, Hoyou look through the vegiord
colored persons that they were commnitied

o will findd that it was prineipndly agalust

¥ |
L They would suy that a blaek man had in-



NORTH CAROLINA. 163

sulted a white lady—had broken into somebody’s house and had stolen hig meat, or
something of that sort, 1or this they would take him and whip im. ‘Ihey whipped
a white man at Compiniy’s Shops, in° Alnmance County, for keeping a colored sehool.
But rumor says that ho had, on several oceasions, attempted to put the blacks on an
equality with the whites; that he carried a colored woman to ehnreh and wanted to
set hor among tho white ludies.

By My, Bavanp:

Question. Was that man’s name Corliss 7

Answer. Yes, sivy that does not appear in the testimony, but that is one of the riumors
why they whipped him.

By tho Cizairyan:
T Question, Youw say it does not appear in any ease that any political purpose was-
attempted to be accoiiplished by the Ku-Klux Klan ¢

cnswer. Not a solitary one, so far as I know,

Question. Do you remember no evidence on the part of any member that it was
inti\,n(l(;d to defeat the operation of the reconstruetion acts or the constitutional ainend-
ments ?

Answer. No, sivy Thave not the slightest idea that they thouglit about the recou-
struction aets,

By Mr. Nye:

OQuestion, What have you the idea that these Ku-Klux Klans were formed for?

snswers Tthinkyindeed 1 have no doubt, they were formed for the purpose of eounter-
acting the effect of the Union leagnes,

Cuestion. Connteracting what eflfeet 2 The political effect?

Answeer. The objeet ol the Union leagues was to induee all the colored people to voto
one way by means of these leagues,

Question, By counteraeting their effeet, yon mean that they meant to intimidate the
colored people ind keep thent from voting all one way ?

Answer. Welly Tdo not know whether they do that,

Question. Tlave you any doubt that the whole paraphernalia, equipage, &e., were
intended to keep than from voting one way ¢ , '

Answer. T must say Lhave a doubt. 16 was intended to organize the whites in the
sanio wiay, in the White Brotherhood, so that i all the whites shoild vote one way as
against the eolored people, there would be n constderable ngjovity in the State,

Question. Then you have the idea that it was for the purpose of organizing the
whites agninst tho blacks ? ' ’

Ansieer, Yes, siv,

Ouestion, Ditl you see any yenson in the workl why they shonld disguise themselves
it it was nothing but a politienl purpose, so that they would not even know one
another? ,

Answer, Thelieve that was a perversion of the society 3 and that I helieve is what all
these politicitl societies will come Lo,

Question, What, in your opinion, was the object of this cquipage ?

Adwsieere T have no doubt it was for the purpose of forming themselves into vigilanee
connnittees, and go ahout punishing people. ,

Question, T other words, taking the Iaw into theiv own hands, and administering
such pitnishment as they thonght was due for ablleged offenses ¢

dnsieer. No doitht aboul that.

Question, Didd you ever hear of theiv perpetrating outrages upon any other people
than republicans 7

SAnsweer, With the exeeption of Corliss, Tdo not know that they perpetrated them
upon anyhody exeepteotored people, 11 they were all republicans, of conrse they were
perpefrated upon republicnns,

Cuestion. Was not” Mr. Corliss a republican ?

Ansiveer, Tdo not know ;| sn])\mxn s0.

CQuestion, Did itappear in evidencee before yon that these disguised mien, in lavge or
simall hands, rode abond from town to town to do these things, to punish supposed
ollenses 1

Anseer, 1 helieve that was thelr main prrpose,

Question, Did it appear that they were in the habit ot patrolling connties and dis-
triets in diggnise? .

Ansiweer, Yos, sivy there was certadnly evideiee to that elleet,

Cuestion, Dl it nppear to you that they threatened people ?

Auswer, Yes, sivy the very worst case of all was theiv threntening a memboer of' the
setite, ) :

Question, What did they threaten to do with him ¢

Answer, Threatened to kil i,
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Question, What was his namo and where did he live?

Answer. His nume was Shoffer, and he lived in Alamnnee County.

Question, For what did they threaten to kill him? :

Answer. Because they said he had introduced the bill by which the peoplo of North
Cavoling wore to bo put under military rule,

Question, I'or that offense they threatened to kill him?

Answer, Yes, sir) and hefled,

Question, DIA it drive him from the country ¢

AAnswer, T have no doubt' it did. :

Question. Did you regard that as an intimidation ¢

AAngwer, Cevtamnly T did,

Question, Was that an isolated case, or were there other cases ?

Answer. T do not know of any other cases except that and the Corliss case. In re-
gurd to the murder of Senator Stevens it has proved a mystery to this day. He was
assassinated in open day, and everyhody has settled down into the belief, even his
own friends, that it was not done for any political purpose,

Question, 1o was killed in the conrt-house 7

Answer. Yey, sir,

Question. When a political meeting was in progress ?

Answer, Yes, siv,

By the CHiammyMaN:

Question, I'rom your position ag a member of the bar at Raleigh or anywhere else in
the State, is it-your opinion that the reconstruction aets are acquiesced in as constitu-
tional and binding upon the people of North Carolinu ?

Answeer. Well, sivy 1 believe that a large majority, when I say nine-tenths I may Lo
putting it too large, have acquiesced in them completely. T know I have myself, and
I helieve that nine-tenths of the people of North Cavelina hiave, as a finality, and that
no attempt has been made or even thonght of seriously to defeat those reconstruction
acts,

Question. Is there in your judgment any disposition to reopen the question of recon-
straetion or of the constitntional amendments that have been adopted sinee the war?

Answeer, 1 have not the slightest doubt that there is in the minds of nine-tenths of
tho people of North Caroling no such purpose,

Question. Have you, then, auy beliet as to the purpose of this secret organization
upon this guestion ? ‘ . :

Answer. Welly it was formed for the purpose [mentioned, Tn the exantinntion at
Raleigh I asked every witnesq for they all had been members of the Ku-Klux society,
how Tong sinee these dutrages had taken place, and the answer was that it was from
cight 1o twelve or lifteen months before, and they all said that they had in eftect been
dishanded. .

Question. Do T understand you to say you do not believe that any sueh purpose is
entortained by the membeps of the organization ¢

dngwer, 1t may have been at the time, but 1T do not know. T cannot say. [ do not
helicve that they did entertain sueli o purpose, 1 believe their only purpose was what
I have adveady stated,

Question. Was not the appearing ol theso parties before these judges looked tpon as
involving a partisnn-question ? ,

Answer, Well, it eante immediately afterthe appteation for the writ of habeas eorpus,
and the people had beeomo greatly exciteds It assumed, thervefoYe, somewhat of a
party eharacter ‘

Question. Was it not looked upoi as involving the relative position of the parties in
the State with vegard to the Ku-Klnx ovganization 7 Was not that the tone in which
the publie sentiment van'at that time? -

cAnsweer, Tean huvdly answer that question,

Onestion. Tu other words, was it nof tooked ipon in this Tight « that the leading mem-
bers of the conservative party cither sought to sereen orexense these ontrages, while
thoso of the republican party sought to bring them (o justice ? '

Awsieer, Welly sivy that was churged 3 T eannot sny - that it was so,

Question, 1t is for the very plirpose of getting your eandid opiinion of the faet that I
put the question, Taking the leading mien and the leading presses of the conservative
orgtnizadion of North Carollny ¢y you say that they nnequivoendly o unhesi-
tatingly denonneed thess ontrnges ?

dnswer. Welly sivy 1 know thit they did fo some extent; and Tknow that they were
charged with not doing it to o suflielent extent,

Question, Tuking the leading men and presses of tho republican organization, did
they unegvivoeally nnd unhesitutingly denounce these outinges ¢

Answer, They did, ;

Question, 'Then any support or apology that the organization or Hts outrages had was
from the conservative party ? '
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of acting ngainst the Union League, T believe one produced tho other,
Question, That was the ground taken in apology for them ?
Answeer. Yes, sir,

By Mr Bram:

Question, Iniveply to the question of General Nye about the iutimidation of Senator
Shoftmer, yowsaid 1t was for the reason that he had introduced a bill to put the State
of North Carolini under military law ?

Answer. Yoy, sive : » )

(uestion. Wag not that eminently an act of inthnidation of itself 7 Was it not in-
tended to intimidite the people of the State for political purposes ?

Answer. That was charged,

Question, Was not that its legitimate effect?

Answer, 1 think it was,

By Mr. Ny

Question. Tn that teial, in which you were engageg did you yvourself volunteer as
connsel to bring the question up with other connsel, o1 were you employed as counsel ?

Ansteer, Noy sive 1 was employed as counsel ?

Question, Lmployed by whom'? ‘

Ansieer, By the pentlemen-who had heen mrrested by Kirk and his men, who wero
formed under the Shoftuer act,  Flie govérnor is now to be impeéached for pretending
to et under the Shoftner aet, but not acting nnder it. L )

Question, Did not that, trial assume o political aspeet 7 Were not the conservatives
rallicd on one side and the republicans on the other?

Ansiweer, Well, sivy it was vot the intention, but I rather think that was the result,

Question, Tt did result in that ?

Answeer, Yes, sir,

Question. Was there any one who nssumed to act with what you eall the conserva-
tive party

Answers Yes, siv, .

Question. Did any one of that party volunteer, or was any one then employed to as-
sist on the other side?

dAnswer, Yes, siv,

Question, Who was he?

cAnswer, Mres MeCorkle on hehilf of Colonel Kirk and his'men. My, Boyden, though
he belobgs to the republican” party; and professes to be and s a very moderate muan,
was also etployed,. Mr, Bailey, the other counsel, up to about that ting, was peting
with the conservative party, but abont that time he professed to have been mtu(:lmﬁ
to the republican party.

Answeer. Yes, sivy in defending them, T grant that they were forrnéd for the purpose

Wastinaros, D, C., February 14, 1871,
Winnranm 11 Barrne, examination continned,
By the Cirainyax: a I

PR

Ouestion, You spole yesterday of your helief' that the people of North: Carolina ae-
quieseed in the reconstrnetion nets of Cangress, and the aiendinents o the Constitu-
tionof the United Stutes, Do yowspeak of that aeqiticseencs as an acqnisseence to ¢ivil
foree, or is it beeansy the people of North.Carolina-nelnowledge the binding constitu-
tionnl efleney of botli the reconstinetion acts and the constititional amendients?

Answer. A considerable portion of the people of the State at first did not aequiesee
in the constitutionnlity of the reconstenetion gets ;3 but us soon as CGeneral Grant and
Mr, Colfitx ‘were ¢leeted President nnd Viee-Presideirt, they considered it as a et ae-
complished, and that they must nequiesee in it as legal and constitutionnl ; that they
had no further right to apposeit, That wag my view, and 1 think that was the view
of nine-tenths of - the fiteligent people of North Car dina who belonged to the same
party Tdid at that time,

Question, Do we undorstand you ag expressing it as your view that the reconstruc-
tion aety are constitutionnd, and the amendments o the Constitution of the United
Stutes are legal and binding ? o

Answers That wo are hound by theni g mich ag by any other pottion ot {he Constitu-
tion, no matter what may have heen ot oviginal views,  The matter has been deeided
agninst g, nnd we are bound to acquiesee init the smme as it we had done so from
the begliing, - (

Question, I hayve put this question to you with the view of putting the fuether gues-
tion whether uny pivt of the people of North Carolinn would again disturh the piblie
peace or the national tranqitillity, by efforts to attaek cither the reconstriiction ncts or
the amendments to the Constitution 7
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Answer, Thave wot the slightest doubt: tlint you could not get a respectable nuinbior
of’ tho peoplo of North Carolinn to attempt any such thing,  Heve and there you nidght
find a_ wild man, who entertaing extraordinary views about overything, who woild
say, “ Well, wo do not helleve in theso things” But thiat is not the sentiment of n
largo majority of the people of all parties in Nortly Cavolinia,

Question,” Do yout helieve that the peaee aid seciivity of the State ean be entirely
secure andil e publie sentiment of a1l parties ein be made nnanimouns in condemig-
tion of the Ku-Klux outrages, as they ave tevined ? ' ‘

Answer. 1 hdlidve that s the sentiment of o large majority of the people of North
Caroling at this time. T was looking this morning over the message ol Goverior
Holden to the legislature, st iF yon linve it here Ienn show you that he strted, and
I believe stated (rady, that that guestion tormed no part ol the issue in (he Inst cam-
paign, In tlint eampaign there was not o word said about the unconstitutionality of
the reconstruetion aets, N

Question, 'The question which I“mt to you was whether the peaee and seenrity of thoe
State conld he secure until the public opinion of all parties was made unanimous in
condenuation of these Ku-IKlux ontinges ?

Angiweer, T think that is now e sentiment of the great majority of the people of
Nortlh Citvolinn, 1 think that is necessary to the seetrity of the people of the State;
but 1 think it has already been hronglit abonf—has already heen aceomplished, - And
I furtheninore think, ift you will allow me to express an apinion, that i€ they will, as 1
think has alveady been done, or is about to he done, put an end {o all seeret. organiza-
SAions—Union Leagiies, Ku-Klux Klans, and everything of the Kind—that will be the
first great thing to seenre the peace and prosperity of our Stale,

Ouestion, Are you nequaiiited with the member of the legislature, My, Strudwich, I
believe, is his name, who ibivoduced the articles ol inpeachinent against Governov
Holden ¢

Answer, 1 know Mr. Strndwich; he is o member of the legislature from the county
of Ovange,

Ouestion, Did the testiniony in the cases of which you liave spoken, and in which
you wete connsely show liin 1o-be o member ot this so-called Kin-Klux ovganization?

Anseer, "There was one man-who spoke of what tinother min il sadd abont what
certaiv peoplein the town of Hillsharough had said'y it eamethrough two or three hear-
snys, FthinkoMe Steadwiel’s name was mentioned as one of those who had advised
something, “That is all T heard or know about it.

Question, A yon know is what was disclosed i the testimony in those cases ¢

Answeer. Yes, sivy what you will find in that testimony 3 that is all T know ahout it.
1 desive to say with regard to oo guestion asked e liere yesterday; abont some testi-
mony given by Mr. Boyd, in relation fo a man of the name of Bradshaw heing con-
cerinedd incsome wiy owith the murder of the man Outlaw ¢ 1 have glaiced over
his testimony, andd Titd that Me Boyd did'say that a-sman naned Bradshaw, wlo has
now Hed the conndry, did state that he was present on that oceasion’s T did nit recol-
leet it yesterday ; and 1 now state that thit was o pact of Me, Boyds testimony,

Ouestion, You have stated Lhat yorand other gentlemen were vetained as the cotinsel
of those men who were charged with cominitting these Ki-Klux outrages?

Ansiwer, We were employed as connsel.

Question, Wore you compensatéd by thoso men, or by any assoeiation ? .

Answer, We have not heen conipensated aball yet by those inen 3 we linve been prome-
ised compensation ; we have been paid g pioet for ot serviees as connsel for the gen-
tlemen who applied to Chiet' Justice Pearson, and atterwied to Judge™Brooks, for writs
of habeas corpus,

Question, Was there any saciety, or organization, or party that employed connsel?

Answers None in the world 5 we were cimployed by the gentlemese tiftanselves,

By M, Bavanrp:

Chestion, Whit do you kuow of Colonel Kirk ?

Cnsieer, T Rnow very Titthe about him oft my own knowledge, T have seen himj but
it he shionld come into this room now I do ot know that T should vecognize him,

Question, Wt was his veputed ¢haracter? .

nsiweer, 1 yow will allow me to speale of what T have heard—I have never lived in
Tennessee, off which State he'is said to be a vesident—1 can state what 1 have heard,
atul what has heen deposed upon the teind ot Governor Holden, wpon his imjieachineit,
It was said that bis charaeter was thit of wdesperate rafilan’y thitat the beginning
of the war ho had johned the confederates, und afterward had gone over upon the
other side, and hind neted as o jayhawker, as they are ealled ot \West,

Cestion, "It he hinl teted upoti both sides ?

Answer, SBo bt was snid, Colonel Cockey formerly oo metber of Congress {vom Ten-
nessee, who, for four years hefove the wa, represented o distriet of Bast ‘Pennessee in
Congress, moved over into North Carvolini at the closo of the war, ahd is now a citizen
of Asheville,  He was exunined, and gave testimony of that churaeter,
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By tlio CIIATRMAN:

Question. Do yon mean ho was examined on the impeachment trinl?
Answer, Yoy, sir; ag to the character of Bergen and Colonel Kirk.,

By My, Bayanp:

Question, What did he say about Bergen ? o A

dnsweer, T forget whether he or some man from Tennessco spoke about Bergen.  Both
of them were given had eharaeters. - Ho said Bergen cauno from Now Jersey, I think,
and Liad been livitg there bit a short timey that he eanie ot there nnll professed to
he o lawyer; I konow he celaimed to be a lnwyer, for 1 saw n letter he wrote to Chief
Justico Pearson in whieh he said he was o member of the bar. I think Colonel Cocko
spoke of the éhavacter of Bergen; but I am not sure about that. 1 know the other
witness did, ) _

Question, Were you present when thesd prisoners were brought in by Bergen and
Kivk under the writs of hibeas corpus issitéd hoth hy Judge Brooks and Judge Pearson ?

Ansteer. They refused to'bring them in before Chief Justice Peatson. ’

Cuestion. After they did bring them in?

Answer. T was present in court at Salishury, where fJudge Brooks made his writs ve-
turnable, when some ot them were brought in,

Question, Were any ernelties deposed to by witnesses as having been perpetrated
upon them by Kirk and Bergen? ;

Answeer, ‘There was very little sabld abont any croelty exercised by Colonel Kirk, 1
heard-some of the prisoners sty that when Kivk was not exeited he was vather kindly
disposed, but they said when he was exeited he was a pretiy ruile, rongh many anil'1
huve heve tho aftidavits, or a copy of the aflidavits, of three men, and I think there
were two otherafidavits, in awvhich they swear that they were taken ottt at the dead lioar
of the night by Bergen and hanged antil they were very nearly deads . These altidavits
they filed before Judge Brooks for the purpose of getting ont o warrant ngainst Bevrgen,
for they had understood that Bevgen hid threatened i they wero discharged by Judge
Breoks be wonld take them uptivgain,

Question, Thit. he wounld rearvest the prisoners if they were discharged by Judge
Brooks ? ) ) .

Answers Yoy, sivy and thereupon they maile these affidavits, and apon them ohtainéd
a warrant upon which Bevgen was afterward avrested and imprisoned in Raleigh, e
wits also imprisoned “upon some eivil weits that were issued agitibst hime for (respiss
ri et wrmis, This book which I have here was got up by myselt at the request of
arent niny members of the bive, In it T have ineluded every piaper of every sort tlint
was introdueed on those hearings-——Covernor Holden's proclamations, the letters that
passed hetween hing aind the ehief justiee, and all the other papers,

Cuiestion, Are all the tiets nuthentic which arve stited in that ook ?

Answer, Yeg, sin ,

Question, Bxtracts from papers fled in yonr convts?

Ansiweer, Yes, sivy every one of them, excepting, of course, the argmients of the conn-
sel,  Here is the afiidavit of Lacion L Murray, (pointing to it in the book,) [ think
his afifdavit is abont as strong as any there,

By the Cramias:
Question, We are not to understand you as vouneling for the trath of all that is testi-
ficd to, when'you say all the facts in that book are authentie?
Answer. Of course not. 1 only vouch that these are correct copies of the papers; I
do not voueh for the correetnesy of’ the statements,

By Mr. Bavanp:

Question, This allidavit of Lueien 1L Mureay, which is on page 67 of this book, is o
true copy of the alidavit filed by him in the United Stiates conrt ?

AAnswer, Tt s,

Question, "That anidavit was on {ile therve ?

ddnswer, Yos, sir _

Cuestion, 1t was read hefore Judge Brooks ?

Ansieers Yoy, sivy it was deawn up by one ol the connsel, not by nivself, but by one
of my associnte connsely and T eaw the afthdavit before it was presented,  Judge Brooks
had great donbt whether a United States disteict” jadae had o vight to et asa pence
ofticer and to fssue o waerant, The matter was ddhiited ot very great length-and with
very grent ability by counsel on both sides, wimong the vest Mr, MeCorkle, whom 1
mentioned yesterday. as wconservalive, who appeared as counsel upon the other side,
Some of the conserviitive papers, T think wither improperly, edllad hing to neconnt for
ity aned you seo that he alludes to that in his opeiing remarks - But all the connsel on
o side told him thit hoacted perteetly vight 5 that Bergen had aovight to he detended,
and thitt it way his duty when ealled upon as conbsel to aet as such,

Question, Was Bergen present when that was read ¢



168 CONDITION O AFFAIRS IN THE SOUTHERN STATES.

Answer, 1o wis not present when the writ was applied for,

Qiestion, Was there n heaviig subsequently 7 v , _ ,

Answer. Judgoe Brooks did not deeido the question at Salishury, but adjonrned tho
further earing of it to Raleigh, e eame down there, and the matter was argied thiero
very fully. T am not sitvo whether Bergen was present or not when that argument
was going on. Judge Brooks was sitting the samo time ag Judgo Pearson, Judge
Braoks having dischaiged all the prisoners,

Question, You mean the prisoners arrested hy Bergen and Kirk ¢

Angteer, Yes, sir,  Judge Pearson was applied to for beneh warrants againgt hoth of
them,

By Mr.Nyi:

Question. What is a beneh warrant 2 T understand a beneh warrant to be one issued
upot an indictment, ‘

Answer, Weis merely aowarrait igsued by the judge, running all over the State, In
North Cavolina a common magisteate, a justice off the peace, may issue a warrant, but
it does not run ot of his own county.

Question. You mean by a heneh warrant one that runs over the wholo Stato?

Answer, Yos, sy dssned by a judge and divected to the shertfly of all the counties in
the State,  Those were heneh warriints isstned by Judge Pearson ; and o great many of
those parties were brought aip. They were what we eall the Ku-Klux cases, of which
1 spoke yesterday, T was retained ns counsel by them, and was down hefore Judge
Pearson while this other case was going on in another part of tho huilding, in the
court presided over by Judge Brooks. Whether Bergen was present or iot, I do not
kunow. Bergen alterward applied for and obtaihed from Judge Bond, the United States
judge for that civenit, o writ of habens corpus i and Bergen was present then I know,
hecause another counsel and myselt” appeared-on hehadt” of the marshaly and Bergen
had his counsel and was himsell present, and the whole matter was argued before
Judge Bond,

By Mr. Bavanp:

Question. Do you know the gronuds of his discharge by Juidge Bond ?

Answeer. You will find Judge Brooks's opinion and Judgt Bond’s opinion in my hook
hiere,  He decided it upon the ground that Judge Brooks had no jivisdiction of such o
case,

Question, Judge Brooks helid that he had jurisdietion ?

Answer, He did apon the growid that the foprteeuth amendinent made them eitizens
of the United States s well as of North Carvolinig nud thal as e¢dtizens ot the United
States hie had a right to protect them, espeeinlly after Judge Pedrson had said that his
authority wis at an end, and it he coulid do nothing move for then.

Question, When you say “them” you mean the prisoners arrested by Kirk and -
Bergen ? .

Answer, Yes, sivg you will find all that fully stated in this hoole; and all the papers
connected with it in any way ave inctuded in_(his book, 1 determined that every
party shonld have justice done hin,

Question. Andd Judge Bond overitled Judge Brooks? ,

nsicer. Not exaetly overruled him, ' .

Question. Tt amounted to the same thing 3 he undid his work ?-

Answer. Yes, sir,

Question, Wis there any State process against Bergen at the timo hd was discharged
by Judge Bowd ¢

dAnswer. Yeos, siv,

Question. Had any State process heen served on him ?

Ansieer, No, sity it was vather an extrnordinarey thing, too, Bergen was there in the
Jail of Wake County, which, of course, was under the charge off the sherift off Walke
County, who hal two_or threee writs in his hands against. Bim—eivil writs and war-
rants for ervinies conimitied, - The marshal of the United States was ordeved to dis-
charge Bevgen, and he went-down and turned him out of jail, and he was not arrested
by the sherift of Wake Coiinty.,

Question, Why did not the sherift of Wulie County excento the proeess in his hands
agninst Bergen?

Anmeer, ‘Thit is more than Tean tell,

Question, \Who was the sheritY of Wake County ?

Answer, ‘I'imothy 1% Leo,

Question, Is ho tho shevilt now ?

Answer, Yoy, siv, o

Question, And he allowed Bergen to go away, having in his hands at the time pro-
cess for his areest both upon eivil and criminal eharges?

Answer. Yes, sive The marshil states that he received the order from Judge Bond
Iate in the evening, and he discharged his prisoner at onee, and he went vight ofl,
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Question. Borgen was then in tho custody of Sherift Leo?

Angwer. o was in the jail,

Question 1In the jail of which Lee had control 1

Angwer, Ho was in Lee's juil, but was considered a3 in the custody of the Unitod
Btates marshal. -

Question. And in Lee’s actual custody ?

Answer, Yes, sir,

Question. What was the character of the men organized as militin by Bergon and
Kirk?

Ansieer, The same testimony to which I alluded just now, as being now taken in tho
impeachment  trial - of Governor Holden, states that a great maiy of them were
young men, under twenty-one years of age, and rathier desporate characters,

Question, \Where were they organized?

Answer. Up there, in tho mountains.,

Question. Were they citizens of the connties where these outrages were alleged to
have been committed ?

Answeer, No, siv, I

Question. Were they all vesidents of the State? . ‘

Answer, Not all of them many of them wers non-residents of the State. . The eon-
stitution of North Caroling preseribes who shall constitute the militia of the State;
that they must be citizens of Novth Caroling; that the constitution expressly provides,
and that they must be between the ages.of twenty-one and forty five—1 think forty-
five or fifty 3 my impression ig that it is forty-five,

Question. Does that sume qualification of citizenship apply to oficers as well as
privates? (

Answer, Yes, siry and one of the charges against Governor Holden s that he appointed
as oflicers of the militin hen from other States, ) ;

Question. BotheKirk and Bergen wero conféssedly eitizens of other States?

Ansicer, That i3 denied now, They put in a specinl plea in these cases that they
were citizeny of {he State off North Caroling, 1 was {old, just before ©left Ruleigh,
that when they first ciime to Raleigh they registered themselves at the hotel as citi-
zens of Tennessee. - After g timo they enme back to the hotel and registered them-
selves ng from Nortly Caroling,

Question, Whit number of men did Kirk organize in his hand ?

Aunswer. A vegiment, 1 think,

Guestion, Do you know how full the regiment was?

Answer, Tdonot; I think it was an m‘hinn’n'y regimoent,

Guestion. What was the general conrse of netion of Kirk and Bergen when they wenb
into the two counties of Alibinee and Caswell—1 mean, as yon have heard from eiti-
zens of thoso counties and from publie report?

Answer, They aetedd with agreat deal of Inwlessness; they just went where they
pleased.. 1 believe that Major Rodney, of {he United States Avmy, made a report coti-
cerning them, whicl is aboiit as corvect as anything ean state. He says that the wmen
hronght together there wers winder very little control, who roamed ahout over the
neighborhood mid plundered and insulted whom they pleased,

Question, Ak grrested whom they pledsed ¢ ;

Answer. No, Fsuppose not 3 they probably arvested only those indiented upon a paper
furnished by Governor Holden, 1 know they arvested the wrong man onee, aid fonid
out- their mistake afterward, and thiy turned him loose, swearing very havd about
being misinformed,

Question, Who wag he? ;

Answer, An ol gentleman from’ Alamanee, by the name of Holt.  They turndd hin
loose, and wanted” him to go home, e swors ho wonld not go; he said they had
started him for the eanip, and o would go there; and he did go.

Question. Do you know anything ahout any organization of negro militia in Chatham
Connty by Governor Holden ¢ )

Aunswer, 1 have no knowledge of that, ‘

Question, Havo yoitiny knowledge of any orgnnization of negroes in auy connties of
the State, for the purposs of burning barns and destroying other property of the white
population ¢

Answer, Organdzed nnder State wuthority ?

Question. No j organized seevetly,

Ai'lnl.\'u'cr. Welly sivy there have recently beenr soveral trinls in which that has been tos-
tified to, , ;

Question, Stato tho objeets of thoso organizations, and thelr general charnctor,

Answer, "They ovganized, it was stated, for the purpose of burning barns and destroy -
ing In-uperly; they appointed two or thres difterent hands, sane ol which wero to hurn
tho barns, aid the others to shoot their owners it they cume ont and attempted to put
out the flnmes,

Question, Have the men who have been tried, cr any of them, diselosed any connee-
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tion of Govarnor Tolden with those bands, or any encottrngement or instruction from
him {0 connection with such nets 1 4 G '

Answer, Tdo not think there has been anytlilng of the kind. T have not heard of any
connection that Governor Holden has hnd with anything ot the soit,

Question. Were those organizations numerous, or did they extend over any lirgo see-
tion of coutitry 7 ; N ‘ » h

Ansiver, ‘They extended from Raleigh awp through o portion of the northwestern part
of Wake County into Chathum County, and into Harnett County, which joins Chatham
and Wake Connties,

Question, Did the nets of these organizations necessarily producee great anxiety among
owners of property’in that vegion { _ _

AAnswer, 10 did so, A great many barns weve hurned, and stables and horses,

Question, Wers there in those connties many cases of robbery of weathouses and
storehouses of the people ?

Answer, Yes, sir, :

Question. State i yony ownoway whal was the-general condition of afthirs in that
respeet, mid who were the persins who perpetrated those roblieries, ;

Answeer, 1t was nitderstood that these men would rob their white neighbors’ liouses
of what they could find in themn A gread many cases of that sort woere reported,

Question, Were there many cases of outrages upon the persons of white females in
that country ¢

AAnsweer, There were some; Tennnof sny there were many 3 1 heavd ol some,

Question, 'There have been o great iy eases of whipping veported, and one or two
ases of putting men to death by higing or drowning, Do you kiow of any cases
where it was shown that this whipping of negro men was comitted by negro men !

Answer. O, yes, siv. Therve ive now Tonr colored nien in the penitentiney. who dis-
guiséd {hentgebyves in the connty of Alunanee, ealled themselves Ku-Klux, and went
about punishing men ot their own color,

Questio. Were nany of these acts which have been veported comnitted by hlack
men in disguise ¢ ;

cisieer, "That is the only case 1 know of ;) and (they were afterward in the comrt of
Alinancee County, betore Judge Tourgee, and were convieted, imd they are now in the
penitentiary. ,

Question, Tt is then n fact that negroes did disguise themselves and commit suéh nets
"throngh the cottry ? -

Ausweer, "There'is no donht abont that 3 they acknowledged ity and ave now in the
pesitentiary 3wy own opinion is that the Union Leagie, as snch, inve now pretty well
ceased {o existyand Fame pretty well satistied that all these Kn-Klux orgoiizations
huve consed to exist assuehy T ihink the evidenee proves that faet j lind onfrages con-
tinue to he committed hy men who stitl disgaise themselves, and go ahont committing
what are still ealled Ku-lKux otrages s that has got to besn eonititon tevm for such
things 3 1 saw the other day where Tour or five white men had been brought to Raleigh
to be examined on Satuvdoyy they called themselves Ku-Klux 3 but they were not;
they never helonged to the Ku-Klux,

tuestion, Thronghout these conntics are colored men placed on juries?

Auswer, Yes, siv, §

Question. No diseriminntion mude aeainst them in that respect ¢ .

Answers None at all3 1 bheheve the Tast erbminal conrt held in Wake Corinty was for
the purpose of teying these Ku-Klux ehiavges; 1 believe the grand jnrey had negroes
upon it, ttnd moie than hadt the petit jury thit teied them were negroes; 1 think there
wete cight negroes aml fowr white men on the petit jory.,

Question. In the Utiited States courts what s the custom in regard to suntinoning
negroes to serve on juries?

Ansiver, They ave sumnoned there, tooy I ohave made wrgiiments in Judge Brooks's
court hefore viegro jurors,

Question. 'They stunnan them the same as they do otlieis?

Anpsiwer, Yes, sivy it vou should stop into our conrt-house at any time and look into
the jury box you would find morve than half of the jurors, sometimes hally and some-
timey not so wany of the jurers, were colored people, .

Question. You say that most all the negroes were members ot these Union Leagues?

Ansicer, Tt was so understood,

Question, Do you know whether those Te: mites were: seeret and onth-hound assocka-
tions

Answer, T do not know anything ahout thehr heing oath-bonndy Tihink they were
seeret sociefios; 1was looking at M, Boyd's (estimony tiis mornitigs [ think he said
they were seeret associantions, though {they made open demonstrations,

Question, You do not Kimw personally the nnture ot the oath they took ?

Angwer, T do not know that they took auy oath at ally 1 do not rewme uber that
have ever heard whether they took any oath at all; but they were scervet associntions
beyond n doubt, .
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Question, What 18 tho present condition of the indebtedness of your Stato? Or, as
that is rather o general question, I will ask you what was your State debt in 1865, at
the closy of thy wu'? .

Answer, havo no paper containing a stutement of it, and T ain_conipelled, thereforo,
to-rely tpon iny recollection of what was stateld in Governor Holdew's messago to the
legistutute; I think ho states that the ante-wanre debt, as it i3 called, was nearly ino
willions of dollars=between eight nnd nine millions; and that wis inereased by ap-
proprintions made by the legisleture betforo the war, but for which bonds were issued
during the war, and whieh incirease was thercefore recognlzed; bt all of what woero
alled tho wir hondy were repudinted by hoth the convention of 1865 and the conven-
tion ealledd under thoe reconstruction ncts; then the legisluture that was elected at tho
samo time the new constitution was adopted—— )

Question, "Tliat was in-1863¢ : , ‘ . )

Ansicer. Yes, sir; thut legisluture pissed hills diveeting the issue of bonds, T think, to
the amount of thirty miillions ot dollirs s may be more,  Bight ov ten millions of' thoso
bondy were, by the suprems: couity dechred to be unconstitutional, and therefors ave
not incloded by:Governor Holtlen in his statement. Ho makes tho present debt thie-
ty millions of dollars, in vottnd numbers; twenty-nine millions and a large fraction over,

Cuestion, That is, including the nine millions of' the ante-war dobt ?

Answer. Yes, siv, :

Question. And shiice tho war the debt hins heen inereased over twenty millions, ex-
clusive of that which has been declived to he unconstitutional ¢

Jusweer, Yes, sivg tor le speaks there of the necessity of' providing for that amonnt,

Question, T'o whomt werve thows: honds issued !

Answor, To the railrodad presidents,

Question, Who appointed those vailrond presidents ?

Ansicer. They were eleeted by the divectors.

Question, Who appointed the diveetors? :

dnswers Some were elected by the stoekholders; nnd some appointed by Governor
Holden, according to the interest of the stoekholders and the State in the roads; aud
these directors eleeted the presidents, 1T konow that to be so feam the fhet that aninth
artiele of impeachment agninst Governor Helden has recently bheen adopted by tho
honge of the State legislature, and it reccived tie almost nnaninons republiéan voto
ol the house; all of the white republicins and some of the colored reprtblicans voting
tor it, :

Ouestion, What is that article? ;

dnswer, That the governor issned some six millions of those honds to George W,
Swepsony as president of the western hraneh ot the Western Railrowd; sl did not fivsg
requive what the Taw demanded,

CQuestion, Who were the divectors of that roind ?

Jdasweers T do not knose s they have been ehanged sinee then, A gentleman by tlie
name of Rolling, who is now the president of” the voad, is in the city at this time; he
coulit tell yon, o

Question, Is he n North Cavolinian ?

Answer, Noy sivg heis nonovthern man,

Ouestion, Ho does not live in the State 7

Answers e has lived there for a fow years,

Question, Was there a general pulilic belief' in the wastefulness and corruption con-
neeted with the ereation of that debt !

Answer, Yes, sirg aovery general heliell

Question, What elleet Lind that heliel on the minds of' the people? ;

Answer, TE had the effeet, in the svestern part of the State, ot alienating even those
who belonged to the republican purty ffom that party, 1 think it had a very great in-
flnenee uponthe last eleetion, , ;

Question: Was or was not. that fear or apprehension of total insolveney of the Stato
one of the leading issnes in your énnvass, il not n leading issue?

Answeer, When the canvass commenced, the great issne was the wastefulness of tho
party in power,

Question, Governor Holden’s admhiisteation ? ,

Ansieers Yes, sivg and that may be said to have absorbed all others, Just toward
the elose, the employment of Kivk and Bervagen enine ing and T think settled the fate of
the eleetion beyod W question, 1t was dowhittual hefore,

Question, 'The sending of these grmed bpudg into the connty of Almnanee ?

Angwer, That had an effeet thironzhout thie State ;- it went filie i eleetrie shoek trom
oneend to theother, Tthink it influeneed thousands of votes: Tkuow Colonel Dockery,
member of the present house; will tell you liis deteat was cansed by that,

Question, Priov to that, what was the absorhing issue? ,

Answer, 10 was (ho wastefmhiess of the public moniey 3 the formation of vings by which
they said the treasury had beeome exhrusted,
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Qlécsh'on. Deseribe the formation of rings, and what way the popular belief onthat sub-
jeet ;

) Answer, Theé popiilir belief was, that General Littlefield—who haga great veputation,
“ whatever it may Lo, in North Carolinn—that ho and others ennvy there nnd formed o
thivd braneh of tho legislature, agthey ealled it, in onoe of the rooms of' tho eapitol, where
whisky and other thinjs weve furnished ; and it was sad@ that those who coulitnot he
bought with moncy wevg-treated aird enjoled out of théir votes, so that the publie mouoey
was voted away by auiitions; nnd Littlefield, Swepson, and’others” got the benelit of it.

Question. Was Getieral Holden sipposed to beprivy to this ? . .

Answer, Fora long time it was belioved that o was not.  The-only thing attributed
to him wag, that he did not look sharply at the matter, fight it and denouncs it, but
that ho rather aequieseed in it but of late they are beginning to churge him with beiug
o participator in it.

an?wlion. Does thig charge form a part of the articles of impeachment in his present
tria .

Answer, T think noty I think the house of representatives have voted alimost unani-
monsly for the ninth article, every white republican voting for it, ind cight or ten of
the colored menibers voting against it. I know that a lewding republican from the
West came down and trged it—said if (hey would convict him on that eharge, which
would not be difiteult, the conviction would not assume a party character,

By My, Bram:

Question. What was the ninth article ? ;

Answer, That Governor Holden liad issued $6,000,000 of boids to Mr. Swepson with-
out conforating to what the law required before they were issued.

By the CramyaN:

Question. Do you say that the ninth article is preferred as one of the eharges?

Answer. Welly it s not yet been aecepted by the senate, 1t was voted upon a day
or two before 1left, by the house of representatives, and reeeived o large majority.

Question, - As an additional article?

Answer. Yes, siv, ,

Question. You say every white republican voted for it?
+ Answer, Yes, sir,

Question, A o eertain number of the colored republicans voted against it 7.

Answer, Yes, sirg n few-—some eight or ten, .

Question. Was thoe article adopted then by all the votes in the house exeept those of
the colored républicins ¢

Answer. Yes, Sir

By Mr, Bavanrn:

Question, Iave you a general knowtxdge of those eight or ten eolored men who voted
against ity whether they are persong ot any property ¥

AAnswers Thave not. Linjght goess, but T would hardly like toput that in as testi-
mony. Some ot them may have property. 1 could not tell whielt has and whieh has
not.

By Mr. Bran:

Question, Does all the property destroyed in the Stato by these Ku-Klux qud other
seeret societies anmount in tho aggregate to anything like the wmount of” these bonds
which have heen-issued corruptly ! s

Aunsweer, No, siv; nothing like it.

By My, WiLsoN:

Question, Where is General Littlefield now ? o

Angicer, In Florida, The aeting governor of Novth Cavoling, Licutenant Governor

faldwoll, s displaying very commendable diligence tn endenvoring to punish™tho men
who haverobbed the State. e sent a requisition to the governor of Florvida, for Gen-
eral Littlefield, o consalted with mo upon the subjeet, Though ho and 1 belong to
difterent, parties; yet 1 regard him as a very moderato man.  Hearving that Generl
Littlefield was in lf‘lm'i(lu,ﬂu mide out what I believed to hatw pertectly fnll requisition
according to all the forms of law, aud sent it to Governor Reed, of Flovida,  Governor
Reed rofused to act upon ity alleging that there was some inforniality in it. It came
back to Governor Caldwell, and Tio supplied what Governor Reed suid was wanting,
and sent 1t agning Governor Reed stll refused (o _deliver the man up,  Theréapon
Governor (}‘uf(lwcll sent a short messnge to the legislatire, requesting them to aufhorizo
him to offer a roward of $5,000 for General LitteiekPs arvests That was passed unani-
mously and iminedintely, and thereupon he issued his proclamation,

By My, Bavarp:

Question, Was it passed by tho votes of r(-piil’)lionns?
Answer, Yes, siv; by all parties in the legislature, A protty resolute man, who was o
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member of the houso of commons, and was sent out thero by Govornor Caldwoll to
make the demand of Governor Reed, lmarixitg that the reward was ofiered, went back
and got somo ‘men from Savannah to go with hin, and they camo very near catehing
Genernl Littlefield, - And now the governor of Florida has oftfered a reward to any man
who will cateh tho man who attempted to kidnap General Littlefield,
By Mr, Bram:

Question, Where dld General Littlefleld come from?  Did he live in North Carolina ?

Answer, Ho stald- there some time, 1 eannot tell whers he does claim {o live, I
understand hig fainily live here.  Ho is o northern man. I have understood that he
has been operating in South Caroling and Florida, as well as in our State,

Question, Were most of the men connected with the railronds in North Carolina
northern men?

Ansieer. Most of them, I think, wero North Carolinians,

By Mr. RicE:

Question. Mr. Swepson was a North Carolinian ?
Answer. Yes, sivy General Littleficld was not.

By My, Bram:

Question. Senator Abbott is one of the directors, is he not, of the Western Railroad ?

uswer, T really cannot tell youw; I neveér paid much attention to that matter. Gen-
eral Laflin was a dirvector. :

Question, Where wag ho from ?

Answer. From New York, I think he is a Drother of (he member of Congress of
that name.

By the CHAIRMAN:

Question. Was not the legislation authorizing the issne of these bonds participated
in by both parties ?

Answer, T understand somo of  the railroud bills were voted for by some members of
the demoeratie party, but not by the pivty generally ; only o few,

(nestion, In anthorizing the issue of the honds, was it made a party question at all,
or was it voted as n public improventent ?

Answeer. 1t wag voted as o publie improvenent, but nearly all the democrats voted
against it as'n wild scheme,

Question, In‘the organizition of the roads were not demoerats and republicans asso-
cinted in the management of then ¢

Answer, Welly siyy Iean havdly answer that question,

Question, ‘Take tho Western Road; wag not Generel Clingman associnted with Gon-
eral Littlefield in-the negotintion ?

Answeers Tdo not know 3 Tnever heard about his having any connection with it till
T eameo to Washington,

Ruestion. Do you know now ?

Ansier, Tdo not, AL know is that he elnims that Littlefield owed him a debt, and
he went to Florida to try to sceure it,

Question, One of the direetors has stated in his testimony hefore ns that General
Clingman was o director, ]

Answer, T think T have heard so 3 but whether he had anything to do with tho nego-
tintion I do not know.

Question, Do not both parties join in endeavoring to bring to justice the men who
havo fraudulently used the funds placed in theiv hands? -

Answer, Yes, sir,

By Mr, Brair:

Question. Did not the radical party defend Governor Holden in the eanvass against
these charges?

Answer, Oy yes, sir; they did last summer, at first,

By the CriaTRMAN

Question. The issuoe last sumiier was the issue of thoso vailroad sceurities ?

Answers Yes, siv, among other things—genéeral extravaginee,

Question, ‘The charvges of impeachment, upon which the present trial of Governos
HNolden is based, were based upon the use of the militia wheu the arvtieles were first
preferved, were they not ?

Answer, Tho first articles were for the employment of the militin and tho suspension
of the writ of habens corpus,

Question. Tho Oth article is not yet adopted by the sennte?

nswer, It had not been when I left; it was just voted by tho house, and had not
been put in order by the senato.

Question. That was after the other articles wero made out ?
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Answer. O, yes, siv, while the trinl was going on,

Question, How recently have the negro outrages ocenrred, of which you spoke, in
Chiathaim County?

Answers Within the last six months, T think,

Question, After the whippings that have been spoken of ag heing committed by the
Ku-Klux?

dnswer, 0, yeg, siry some twelve months after.

Question, In what you have stated in regard to them, hiave you spoken merely from
general information, or were you counsel in any of the cases !

Ansiwer, 1Twas not connsel in any of the cases,

Question, Were you present ud the teial?

Answer. T wasnot,

Question. ‘Thew the information you have concerning them is not personal, hut public
information?

Answer, Precisely—what [ have leavned from the papers.

Question. You have mentioned the appearance of Mr. MeCorkle as counsel for Colonels
Kirk ani Bergen ? ,

Answer. Yes, sivy or rather for Governor Holden,

Question. He appenred as connsel for whom!?

Answer: The counsel said they were acting uider the order of Governor Holden—
employed by him, ,

Question. Dl T understand you corvectly ns saying that the econservative papers cen-
sured and denounced him in his professional eapacity as counsel ?

T Ansicer, One or two of them said he ought ot to have done so, heing a gentleman of
the eonservative party; but that was vepudinted by the professign. 1 do not know
that it was generally so spoken of by the papers, but it was by oneor two of them.

Question, Your attention was ealled to an afidavit of Lueien Murray in this book
prepared by vou; was he ever confronted by Me. Bergen ina heaving hetore the conrt ?

Aunswer, T owas not present when that matter was discussed; T was betore Justiee
Pearson attending other causes; this was up stairs, betore Judge Brooks,

Question, Do yon know whether he or his counsel haild any opportunity of eross-
examining Mro Murray ?

Answer, 1 do not,

o Question, Wikt heeame of his ense—the application fora writ of haheas corpus ?

Aevwers Awarrnnt was sranted and Bergen was cotimitted to jail, s was alter-
wards released hy Jidge Bowd,

Question, My, Murvray was relensed ?

Answer, O, yes, sivy by Judge Brooks, That atidavit was deawn up after he was
released, uponits heing stated that lie feared Bergen would have him rearrested,

Question, Was there any other opportunity for Bergen to cross-eximine Murray !

Answers Not that 1 know of, ,

Question. Do yon know whether Murray wasaomember of tlie Kn-Klux organization ?

wswer, T itk he was noty 1 am not certain,

Quextion, 1aye you any kiowledge !

AAnswer, Onthe subsequent examination they ditl not conneet him with i at all; i
turiied ont that he had been taken ap without proper warrant or authority, withoit
having been guilty of any crime whatever, .

Question, Where you know persons to he members of this organization, would yvou
give eredenee to theiy aftidavits againsi parties charged wiih avvesting them?

Answers I they were honest men, )

Question. Where vou knew thent o b members of the avganization ?

Answer, Yes, sivc il 1 knew thein to he members of the orgunizationy it [ believed
them to be honest mens The exantination of Tiekell and others satistied ne that it
they were honest men they woulil testify to the trnth, and act according to the truth,

Question. You have spoken ot the meny who have been examined in the impeachment
triady, with reference to Colonel Kivk's veputation; what was (heir position ? had they
been patlinting orexensing the Ku-lux ?

Answer, Well, siv, they Tived a long way out of the range of the Kn-Kinx,

Question. Do you know what their position was ?

Adnswers Ido not,

By Mr, Bavaen:
Question, Was Mr. Cook a member of Congress?
cAnsweer, Colonel Cook had heen amembier of Congress from East Tenhessce,

.

By the CnamsaN:
Question, Before the war?
Answers Yesysive At the elose of the war he nioved into our State, and is practicing
Jaw there, and understand he s a very respeetiible geatloman,
Question, Do yoncknow whether he excused or denotneed the Ku-Klux ?
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Anawer. T donot; Ihave no information, actnal or by rumor,

Cuiestion. Can you tell tho pogition of uny of the parties who testified in the impeach-
ment trinl, whether they syimpathized with or denounced the organization

Answer, T do not know, and therefore eanniot state.

Question, There is'a very deep-seated feeling aiid excitement anmong tho individunls
there with referénes to this question, is there not.? ;

Ansieer, Thévo has been 1 do not t{xinlc_ there lsnow,  The general inipression is that
now ull the outrages that nve committed by disguised men nre by personis who are not
metihers eithér of” the Union Leagues proper or of the Ku-Klux associntions,

Question, From-yonr position as counsel in these cases, was it your own individual
position that the reconstriction acts were uiiconstitutional ?

Ausweers Welly sivy imaintained that, and voted'for Seymour nud Bliiv on that gron: d,

Question. DRUyou alsotake the ground that the fonrteenth und fifteenth nmendiments
were not adopted ? ,

Awsweer, Noy sivy Toever took that groimd fivmy life; and as soon as General Grnut
amd Colfax were eieeted 1 considered that ninttér settled; just as mueh as iF in o conrt
of law a vule of Tnw was deeided ngainst me, and that it was my dily to aequicsee in
it. 1 wassworn to support the constitution of North Cavoling, and 1 feel myselt just
as mueh under obligation lo'mn])lmrt thenr now as T'did before the war,

Question, 1Ius your own position been in mitagonism to Governor olden on these
questions avising ont of the proceedings in Almiance Connty ?

Answer, Welly'Thave been opposed to his cottrse,

Cuestion, You denied his right (o declare those canunties in insmereetion 2-

Jwsteers Yes, siry, and 1 deny it to this day, and (hit is ono of the main grounds ipon
which he is impenched. T eontended that he had o vight ander the constitution to
declire o whole comity ininsurereetion, for by so doing he makes  everyliody in the
connty, men, wounten, and children, h':l{tm's, and liable to be tried for treason, 1 put
the guestion (o the ehief justice in an aegument before him, whether if @ eounty in
which he happetied to live were declaved i insurrection, that would make hin a teaitor,
and he deeided that it would,

By Mr. Bavarn:

Question. Was the effect of deelaving these counties in insnrreetion and then sending
a colonel of wilitia into it, to place every wan, woman, aid ¢hild in that county under
the anlinmited diseretion of {he militin 2

Ausiwer. That is the effeet of the decision of the eourt under the Shoftner aet, 1 e-
vied the rvight to deelare that the whole county was iicinsureeetion, Only those en-
gaged i insuirection could be traitors, bat that the whole people of the county were
engaged in fusurveetion 1 Qenied, and still deny. ‘ g

Guestion. You have spoken of a number ol eases of barn-burning and theft ; stato
whether the persons who lost property in that way were, in your knowledge or helicf,
menhers of the conservative party, or were they known as radicals politically 7

Awswere Most ol them were members of the conservative party'; no doubt about
that, .

Question, Were suche cases «)lf,uu‘t'v‘z.l‘g'v:; generally diveeted against_the property of
conservatives? = ‘

Answeery 1 think they were; that is what wis understood,

urstion, Yoirhinve spoken of fwo elisses of oitrages, one direeted against property
and the otlier of a rétalintory chiaeter, diveeted neainst the persoins who weresapposcd
tocommil theni—these whippings, &eoj do vou helieve there is now through your
State o poptlar disposition,  accompunied by a legal ceftiviency, to puniﬂ\ such
olfenses on cither side by law ¢ ‘

Suswer, 1 believe that all the people of Novth Carolinit ave now so disposed, and T
believe a bill s been introdueed i the legislature for the purpose of making highly
peual the holding of wll these seervet political ovganizations,

Question, T the present legislatore ! .

Ansieer, Yes, siv,

Question, "T'o punish and areest suel a conrse of {hings ?

nsweer. Yos, siv,

Cuestion, Do yout believe sueh laws can he efifeiently executed 3

Cuswer, T helieve they eun,

Cuestion, With the senfiment of the people in theiv favor?

Auswer, Ohy yes, sivy o all parties,

By M Riciss
Question, When were the railread honds fssued 7 N

Awswers T 1867 or 126351 eanuot give the precisedate,  There were 86,000,000 issued
fo Mr Swepson, ind they are all gone, T have inguived how mueh was venlized tor the
Lenetit of tho road, nnd the very higlnm( estimate is $150,000 out ot (he 56,000,000,

Question, When were they sold ¢
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Answer, Teannot tell you, They have been hawked about in New York, and I he-
- o )

lieve some have gone to Earope,

Question. When did the legislature meet that authorized it?

nseer. Tt was eleeted at the samo time that the new constitution was adopted, in
1765, They were voted for on the 2Est, 220, and 283d of April, 13620 The constitution
was adopted and officers were eleeted under it at the same time,

Quextion. How long after the passage of the act was it betore the honds were issued?

Anmeer. D think it was the following winter.

Question. Aftee the presidential election !

AAumieer, Yes, siv,

Question. When did the discussion commenee in regarvd to the protligacy of Governar
Holden's adminisication 7

Anxiwer, Well, siv, soon after the legistature began to make these approprintions, as I
have abready said, a few demoerats, a very few, voted for them s 1 think they wanted
to pet—at least they were charged with wanting to get—some part of the spoils,

Question. Was that in the issne of the eanvass in 1RG0

Ansmweer. No,y sir, the only issue then was whether the constitution should be adopted
or not,

Question. T mean in the presidential campaign of J8GR, was there any issne in regard
to that !

Answer, Tdo not think it was ainissuey T think the main issne was whether the re-
constrinetion acts were to he sustained or not,

Question, Then the Ku-Klux organization was in existence priov to the timoe that
there was sy issue in regard to the extravagance of Governor Holden'’s administratior,
wis it not !

Ausieer, b oreckon it was all about the same time, T was looking over the testimony
of Mr, Boyd, the principal witness intraduecd on the part of the State by Governoy
Holden's connsel, and 1 see that he says the Union Leagues were first formed for the
puarpose of accomplishing an ohject, and that wasc to anite ail the colored citizens of
the State into o party to vote the siine way, as they doomost ananimonsly, and that
the Ku-Klux organizations were formed inovder to counteract theivetfeet s that is what
he sayvs in efteet, snd 1 believe it is trae,

Quextion, But the Ku-Kinx organization did not grow ont of the extravaganee of the
State administrati m !

pswers T do not think it did; but then they were Kept up for the purpose ot defeat-
ing that party.

By Mr. Bran:

Question. Yon said your did not helieve there was more than SI20.000 vealized for {he
State, or toward the accomplishment of the work on the Western Railvoad, out of the
S6,000,(000

Auxeer. The western division of it, .

Quextion, ow much was reatized ont of the other houds for the State and the roads?

Anseer. Nothing, T thinke There was a Lavge nnber issued to AL Jo Jones and
others,

Question, Nothing, comparatively, was realized out of any of those honds toward
the completion of these works?

Ansieer, Very little, indeed.

Quextion. Do yonsuppose that 51,000,000, altogether, wasrealized out of the £21,000,000°7

Amsweer, Probably that wourld be putting it a little too Jow; perhaps $2,000,000 or
82,500,000 wonld cover the whole amonnt,

CQuestion, That was all that was realized ?

Awacer. And henee there is among all parties in the State a strong indisposition to
pay for themn,

Question, You say yvou do not know where these honds are 7

Ansiwer. T do not 3 most of thew, T think, are in the hands of hrokers in New York

Ouestion, You say General Lafling hrother of the member of Congress, wis oneof theso
railroad men; did you ever hear of the civewwmstance of Mr. Latling member of tho
House, sending one of these bonds nnder his frank to one of his constituents

Answer. No, sivy T never heard ot it that recollect,

By the CriarnyaN:
Ouestion. You have spoken of My, Boyd; did you know him as a member of the har?
Answer, 1 did not until I saw him when he was examined,

By Mr. Bavanrp:
Question, Do you know whether ho was retained by Governor Holden ?
Answer, Tdo not 3 but T was utterly astonished, as Ubslicve everyhody else was, when
Governor Caldwell sent to the legislature an account of the expenditures made by
Governor Holden, and among the rest was $250 paid to Mr. Boyd as counsel.
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Question. Tn what cases?

Answer. 1 was understood in theso Ku-Klux eases,

Question. AU The time he was imaking his confession and exposing them ?

Answer. Yes, sivg it yvou will notico I eross-examined Mr, Boyd, and nsked him if ho
did notbelong to the legal profession, and iU i was not very honorvable foraoman to helong
to it,  Hesaid it was, Then asked it the word of an honorable wan onesht not to bens
wood as his oath,  He replicd, *Certainly” Then 1 handed him a card he had had
published, in which he denied that he knew anything about these things,

Question, That is My, Boyd's testimony 5 ean yon toen to the page !

Answers T did not publishiit in thoe ook T produaced here s itis in the docnments ae-
companying Governor Holden's message,

By the Ciateyas:

Ouestion. Taking the objeets of the Kn-Klux organization, and ils obhligations to ho
sueh as were disclosed npon that trind, do vor look upon it as dishonorable and unwor-
thy for any citizen to discloso the existence and purposes of sael, an organization
was that yomr meaning !

AAnsweers Fdid note My objeet was to show that Me, Boyd had made a declavation as
an honorable man, and Chen had sworn differently as a witness.

COuestion, Was he not honnd to conceal it?

Answeer, 1 had no objeetion to M, Boyd oranyhody else coming out and (elling every-
thing, :

Question. Did you not understand that the obligation of the order required him as a
mether to coneeal the faet ?

Answeer. Yesosivy bat he had avight to abandon i, and then he ongzht to come out
aned diselose everything, 1 odimitted that,

Quextion. Was there anvthineg in the examination to discredit his testimony ?

Jnsweer. None, exeept that.

Ouestion. Any attack upon his character?

Ansirer, No, wir,

Question, He was well known there.

Answers Yes, sin

Cuestion, e had been a democratic candidate for the legislature in Alamanee County
at the time he made this dizelosnre?

Jnswer, Yes, sir,

(hestion. Did you ever hear anything against his standing hefore, as a member of
the bar or o citizen!?

nswers T had not, T hink he stood fair. I desire, with the permission of” the com-
mittee, to read a portion of a leading editorial article from one of o independent
papers, the Daily ‘Pelegenn, of Raleigh, of February 10, =71 One of its editors is a
moderate cepublican and the other a moderate demoervat: “The leagnes of the repub-
licans and the klans of the conservatives have already diamaged the material interests
of North Carvolina beyond computation, and theiv intluenee will be felt for years to come.
The impeachment trial, now proovessing in onr State capital, oviginated in the organ-
ization of these {wo opposing associations, and over one-halt’ the Luwlessness of the
State ean he traced to their elosed doors. It hehooves the good men of hoth particey
to repadiate and condemn them,  Laws shonld he passed prohibiting them, They
hode no goml 1o a people. They e o nisance and an atter abomination, and, if
contimied, will nndermine onre liberties and subvert the Government,” 1 perfectly
conenr in everythivg in that pavagraph,

By Mr. Bavanro:

Question, Do yonr helieve the sentiment of the mass of the peopla of your State is in
accordance with it?

Answers 1 helieve most of what Teall the vespectable portion of the people is now in
full accord with that sentiment. I have not the slichtest doubt about it.

By the CriamryaN:

Cuestion, Did you poblicly denounee these Ku-Klux hefore this trial ?

Answer, [did, sive There was a case where a woman in disauise went to frichten o
poor fetlow, and he thonght she was a Kou-Klux, and Killed her, T was at the trial ag
connsel for him, and availed myselt of the opportunity to use the strongest. languago
1 could employ. I got it published in the Standard, at that time a republican organ,

WASHINGTON, D. C., I'tbruary 14, 1871,
Daxien R, RusseLn, jr., sworn and examined.;

By tho Cuairman:
Qucstion. Pleaso state where you resido ?

12
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Answer. I live in Wilmington, Novth Cavoling, at this timo.

Question. 1ow long have you lived in the Stato ?

Answer, T was horn there.

Question. What positioun do you ocenpy {

Answer. T am one of the judges of the superior court for the fourth judicial district,

Question. What counties does it emfraco ¢

Answer. Tt embiraces the connties of New ITanover, Branswick, Columbus, Bladen,
Robeson, Sampson, and Duplin,

Question. Have there been any disturbanees in your jndicial distriet within your
Lknowledee affecting the seeurvity of person and property 7 It 5o, give us your knowl-
edge with regavd to them,

AAnsweer. Welly sivy in the county of Robeson there has been a great deal of lawless-
ness. That lawlessness, however, is not in anywise political; it simply grows out of
the depredations of o band of robbers, who are banded together for ordinarvy purposes
of robbery, and who existed before and duaring the war, helore party organizations wero
formed in the State, and theiv depredations ave not contined to demoerats or vepubli-
s, bt they depredate generally onomen of all shades of politieal opinion, They
have been indicted in the conrts and have been ontlawed by my-clf’; they ave well
kunown to the community, and the evidenee is abitudant 5 the only difiieulty is to appre-
hend thewss There is o company of United States trooaps there now atter them, The
citizens biove heen ealled out frequently, Two of ther were convicted aed senteneed
to death by mvselit and they hroke jail 16 is sete fosay however thai che lawlessness
in the connty s in nowise politieal,

Que=tion. Lo there any diftfienlty in admivistering jucties in the counties where yvou
sueceed i arpeating the eviminals?

Snswer. None whatever; heeanse men of all shades of opinton arve entirely in favor
of punishing them.  Bills have alveady heen found by (he grand jury. There is no
ditfienlty in getting a bitl there; and no diflicnlty in procuring witnesses; and no
difficulty with saflicient evidence in procuring a counvietion,

Question. What is supposed to he the strength of the organized band of robbers!?

Answer. The active members probably do not number fitty. 1t iz doubtful whether
there aveanore than (iftecn or twenty that are actoal perpetrators of evime, The ne-
groes and white people are all opposed to ite The militia was ealled out in August,
1=GY, to arrest them, The ealling oul of the militia cansed nmore lawlessness, These
outlaws e mulattoes who reside in Skufiletown, which is inhabited by mulattoes and
negroes, and are supposed to have some sympathizers in (he cornunity, The anilitia,
in Augnst, 1569, caught some of them s and the ealling out of the militia themselves
oceastoned agreat many depredations to he comrit ted upon those who were known {o
be their sympatthizers and friends. T was observed at the next term of the conrt that
there were more negroes indicted for depredations upon negvoes than there were upon
whites; in other words, the prejadices of the vightaninded negroes themselves scemed
to he s decided as those of the whites against these ontlaws, g

Question. Is there any other portion of your district in which there has heen any
disturbanee of” the public pvace!?

Answecr, There have heen erimes committed in some of (he connfies—in af least two
of them, to my knowledge; and T have reason to believe that in one ot them, at least,
they were political.

Question. Which county is that?

Ahesieer, Sampson, .

Question. What was the charvacter of {hat !

Answer, The most striking instanee T have heard of was that ol a colored man, who
was said (o have been a prominent gentleman and republican in the connty, who was,
called out 1o his door jnst after dark, and shot dead hy a pavty of men at the fenee.
That oecurred in the yvear 1S5< immediately after or’durine the presidential campaign.
There has heen no indictment, and, so tar as 1 have been informed, no attempt to indiet,
That occurred within a short distanee of the county town, alimost within the corporate
linnts,

Question. Werve the men in disgnise who committed the offense ?

Answer, T have never heavd that they were. [ took the tronbie mysell to inguire
privittely of negroes, and with one or two Ustion men in that comafy, il they knew any-
thing about the facts conneeted with that murder. The invariable answer was, it they
had any knowledge it wonld wot be safe for them (o reveal it,

Question. Wus it the subject ol investigation hefore any magistrate ?

dnswer. T have never heard that it was,  Whether it was before a coroner’s jury or
not, I cannot say, It ix usnal to have such o jory, and the usual verdiet in suel a easo
is, death by some person nnknown to the jury.  Whether an inquest took place in that
ase, 1do not remember. Thero has heen no presentment or indictment before thoe
grand jury.

Question, Was the oceurrence given in charge to the jury to investigato?

Angicer The ocenrrence was given in common with all other oflenses against the
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criminal Taw in the connty. T do not recollect whether partieular attention was di-
rected to that marder or not. It was well known in the comiimunity, and the grand
jury knew it as well as anybody elso; that is, the fact that the murder had occurred.

Question, What was the political complexion of that county and its oflicers?

Answer. Demaoceratie,

Queation. In cases arising out of injuries alleged to have been inflicted by {his seeret,
disgnised organization, do you believe that there is any difliculty in the administration
of justice in the courts in consequence of tho existence of the organization 7

Answers Welly T do ot remembey that there has been any indictment in any court
over which T have presided against these masked marauders, I havoe a very decided
apinion on that question, but I cannot speak from any positive personal observation..

Queation. We would he glad to have your opinion, as w judicial ofiicer of the county,
of the stato of things in your district ?

Answer. Do youw desire me to speak specially with referenco to my distriet, or else-
where in the State?

Question, Elsewhere in the State, if your information is such as to have formed an
opinion upon it,

Anzeer. Well, sivy my information extends over most of the State, for T have taken
the trouble to inform myself in respect to ad least {wo-thirds of (he State wheie these
depredations have occerrred, and from what I consider velinble authovity, my opinion is
very decided that it is utterly impossible to seenre anything like a fair Grial in any
case where any pevson helongs to any of {these seeret organizations or elans, Constitu-
tional Union Guards, &g atterty impossible in any sueh case to obtain a tair trial on
the part of the State. In the first place, it is diflienlt to procure a bill of indictment
thronal the grand jury. In nine cases ont of ten the men who commit the erimes
constitute or sit on the grand jury, cither they themselves or their near relatives or
tricnds, sympathizers, aiders, or abettors; and, it a bill is found, it is next to impossi-
ble to secure a convietion upon a trial at the bar, I have heard of no instance in North
Carolina whero a conviction of that sort has talken place.

Question, Does that difliculty avise from the presence of members of thoe organization
on the jury, or from the appearance of witnesses in behalf of the organization, or both ¢

Auswer. Irom hoth, so far as my information goes,

Question. To what extent is that the case in the Stato at present; in how many
conntics or districts that you are aware of’?

Answer, Welly siv, my opinion is that it is the case in every connty where these
oveanizations have heen introduced, They have not heen introduced inall the connties,
so fr as my observation goes. IMor instance, in iy own distriet, I am sure there ave
at least fwo connties whero they have never been introduced at all, and one ot these is
a very strong demoeratic county:.

Cuestion. Name them,

Arsicer. Columbus and Brunswick.,

Question, Tow as to the other counties of the distriet 7

Auwswer, Welly sivy T speale merely from information. My opivion i it does exist in
at least three connties in the distriet. ‘The other three T am in doubt whether it does
or notsat any rate, L have never seen any evidence in the other three in the jury-box.

Quextion, What three does it exist in!

Avswer. Dupling Sampson, and Robeson, Thero have heen no outrages hy that order
in Robeson. Well, there have heen some, T have no doubt, but noue very flagrant ; I
do not know but 1 did hear of their killing ono man. I believo the organization exists
 those three counties.

Question, Are you cleeted by the popular vote ?

Answer. Eleeted by the peoplo of the whole State,

By Mr. Bram:

Question, AL what eleetion ?
snswer, In 1863,

By the CriiairMan:

Question. Do 1 anderstand you, then, as saying that in eases which come to your
court arising out ot this political organization, your belief is that justice cannot be ad-
ministered throngh the medimm of jury trial ¢

Aduswer, That is my decided opinion,

Question, From your experience as a judicial ofieer there, can you sngeest to ug any
practical legislativo remedy for this evil !

Jnswers Welly siv, that raises numerous constitutional questions, many of which I
have not examined. 1 did say, and I say vow, that two years ago, or even one year
ago, i we had had a competent government, competent legislature, and competont ox-
ceutive, it could have been suppressed by the State authorities, by the Stato courts,
and that its final trivmph is due, in a great measure, to the incapacity ot thoso who
hitve been intrusted with the administration of our governmental aflairs in the State.
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‘

Question. Do you speak of the ineflicient administration of the civil codo itself, or
the fuilure of legislation 7

Answeer, T speak in the first place of the failnve of the legislature to afford tho neees-
gary remedies in eriminal proseeution, their partial failure to do that; and sceondly,
tho utter failure of the excentivo to carry into efet such remedies as were given by
tho legislature, )

Question. Youw mean by that the act which authorized the governor to use tho mili-
tary ?

Answer. No, siv; T do not mean that,  Twean the aet of assembly which gave him
authority to push the prosecution in the coarts. lov instanee, thero was an act of
assembly which anthorvized the removal, at the instanee of the State, of cases after a
bill was found, trom o county where a fair trial could uwot ho had, to a foram, to ho
geleeted by the State. That was entively constitutional. The legishture il a perfect
right to do it. ‘There were unmerons bills of indictment fonnd, witlh evidence subi-
cient in somoe counties, I .am entively satistied, but there was an utter failure on the
part of the governor to employ counsel and prosecute those cases by removing them to
gnch fornms as would have aftorded a fair trial 5 in conseqnence of which no convie-
tions were had.

Question, Was that duty imposed upon the governor or upon the district solizitor?

cngweer. 1 do not rementher that in so many words the povernor was required to do
it, but he was making pretense of putting down the'Ku-Klux, Tl hadaseeret sarvieo
fund at his disposal, was employing detectives atl over the State, and in some instanees
employed connsel. The solicitors in the cireaits did not malke the motion, and the
governor ind nobody there to insist npou it.

Question., "To wiich civenit do you vefer?

Answeor. T refer now Lo certain eases that occurred in the thivd judicial district.

Question. What judee presided ?

Answeer. Judge Clarke 1 think there are other cases of that sort in the Stafe,

Question. Have the political parties of the State divided to sneh an extent npon the
question of this organization and the ontrages committed by them as to nmake it o
party question

Answer, T think go, decidedly.

Question, Tow has that division heen ehavacterized ?

Answer. Well, siv, it has been characterized in this way: theyepublican party hag
uniformly denounced theso ontrages, while the democratic party, as indicated by the
press, has, in my opinion, unitormly defended or attempted to justily theine 1 know of
but two demoeratie papers in the State which have openly denonneed thenn Those
two are the Salisbury paper, edited by Mr. Hanes, and the Charlotte Democerat, edited
by Mr. Yates, '

Question. Are you speaking of tho depredations by the Ku-Klox ?

Answer. Yes, siv,

Question. Do you know of any other seerel political organization in the: Stale, of
either party, whose operations interfere with the scenvity of person and property ?

Answer. 'do not. The only seeret political organization on the other side, that has
existed since the reconstruction, is what is knows s the Union Leagne T oamnot o
member of ity never had anything to do with it buat so far as my observation in the
court-house and out of it goes, I have no reason to believe that any erime has ever
been conunitted by the members of the organization, or that it hias inany way encour-
aged lawlessness,

Question. 'To what extent does this state of afiairs to which you have {estified exist
at this time in the State?

Answer, Tihink it is just as bad now as ever it was,  While holding conrt, in Decem-
ber last, in Camberland County, which is ont of my circuit--1 exchansod civenita with
Judge Buxton—1 had reliable information that a white man was taken out of fown,
within the vicinity of Fayetteville, in that connty, and severely whipped and sconrged;
the reason given heing that hie had voted the radical ticket, :

Question, Do yon recollect his naune ¢

Answer. Raiford,

Question. Was any judieial investigation institufed ?

Answer, None whatever,  Information was hrought fo me, af my rooms, that the
man was in town, and 1 teld the gentleman who hrowsht it to tell him to come and seo
me. The statement was also made that he' knew two of the men,

Question, Was this statement made by the man who was injured 7

Answer. Noy, but by the party who came to see me. He said the man who was in-
jured was in town. I asked the gentleman it the man conld swear to nny of the par-
ties. The answer was that he could swear to two of them. I then told the gentleman
to go and bring the man to my room that night, for the purpose of making an allida-
vit, 8o that I could issne n beneh warrant.  He did not come, but sent mo word by tho
same party that he could not make an aflidavit; that ho feared ho would be killed if ho
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did. T heard that night that he could not bo found. If ho had appeared before me at
all, it would havoe been compulsory, and I could not compel him to make av aflidavit,

Question, From your obgervations and travels through the State, in the exercise of
your oflicial functions, what is your helief as to tho effect produced upon public secur-
ity by theso outrages that have been committed 1

Answer. Welly sir, I think, in thoso counties where these outrages have taken place,
and the public have seen that they havo been done with impunity, there is an absolute
reign of terror, and there is no sort of security to cither lite, liberey, or property in
favor of any man against whom thero is reasonable suspicion that ho is o Unton man
and fuvorable to tho Government,

Question. Wers you present at any of the investigations that arose out of theso out-
rages, when several of the judges sat together ?

AAnswer. No,y siry Iwas not at one of them. I have read all that investigation, and
these opinions I give are formed very much upon that investigation, together with
other facts and general observation.

By Mr. Bram:

Question. What are your political opinions?

Answer, Tame aorepublican, I was born in North Carolina; wag in the confederate
army ; was a large slaveholder; and am now a considerable tax-payer and property-
holder, and entirely identified with the peoplo and interests of the State off North Car-
olina.

Question. You live in Wilmington?

Ansieer, T do at this time,

Question, You do nol profess to speak of these outrages of your own knowledge at
all, ouly from general opinion ?

Answer. No, siry of course 1 have seen none of themm committed.

Question. You say you are not a member of the Loyal Leaguo?

Ausiwer. T am not,

Question. What is the purpesc of that organization, so fur ag you know ?

Answeer. So far as T know, the purpose of it was Lo formn an organization in the intor-
est of the republican party. I have nnderstood, in fact 1 have been told by ono of the
leaders of the league in the State, that there hag been no attempt to organize it for
more than twelve months past. ‘There have been no meetings, that 1 am aware of,
daring that time.  When it was first organized and was in progress, in the campaign
of 18358, its meetings were well known.  The negroes were assembled on my plantation
and in that vicinity, going to the meetings,

Question. Was it an oath-hound organization?

Answer. 1 think so.  The oath has been published often in North Carolina.

Question, All its oaths? b

dAnsweer. What professed to bo all,

Question. What were they ?

Answer. Simply to support the Constitution and laws of the United States, and, so
far as I remember, something about voting tor loyal men,  That is about all 1 remem-
ber of it

Question. Did you never hear of any threats or intimidations used by this organiza-
tion against negroes and others who chose not to support the republican ticket f

Answer. Well, T have heard chavges of this sort in democratic newspuapers very often;
and let me say just there that Ihave heard of two iustances that have occurred in
Southeastern North Cavoling, where 1 live, where negroes had been assaulted on the
ground that they voted the democratic ticket,

Question. Assaulted by other negroes?

Ansiwer. By other negroes; and that in both these instances the negroes who did it
were indicted, tried, convicted, and punished.

Question, When was this Loyal Leaguo established in North Carvolina !

Answer. T think it was in the latter part of 1867, when the reconstruetion measures
were first put in foree.

Question. By whom wero the leagues established ?

Answer, My impression was that they were estublished by the leading negroes and
perhaps by thoe leading active local politiciang in the interest of the republican party.

Question, Wero they not established invariably by northorn men who had gono down
there § :

Answer, T o not know that they wero.

Question. Is it not your beliet that the order was introduced there by northern imen
who went down into that country after tho war?

Answer. Well, my belief is that the order was introduced there not exclusively, ns
far as my observation has gone, by natives, but that native whites havo been as nctivo
in tho leaguo as what are known as carpet-baggers.

Question. Do you not kuow that the Union Leaguo existed in the North and was

taken down there by what are known as carpet-buggors 7
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Answer. 1 have no doubt about its antecedent oxistence in tho North, and I think it
is very reasonable to suppose that many of the moen wers very active in introducing it
there.  Whether they were originally active or not I could not swear, I should tuke
it as nothing but reasonable, however, that thoss who were orviginally active in efleet-
ing reconstruction introtluced it, and my recollection is that the first republican
reconstruction convention—1 mean the fiesst party convention in the inferest of recon-
straction—assembled in the State was coposed almost entively of native white and
colored people. 1 do not think the carpet-baggers had taken hold of political aflairs
then, - .

Question. Did tho establishment of this Loyal League precede the establishment of
what is known as the Ku-Klax and other organizations?

Awnswer, Welly the Loyal League was known in North Cavolina hefore thero was any
public attention direeted {o what is now called the Ku-Klux Kiang but the introduoe-
tion of the Loyal Leagne in North Carolina was contemporancous with the organization
of the republican party in the Stale, which took place in 1867, By that time thero
Lkad been nuwmbers of outrages committed in the State by persons who ealled them-
selves regulators, and whose principal pnrpose secemed 1o be to hrealk up the negroes,
prevent them from owning or renting lands, or owning horses or other property, and
whose depredations were confined entirely to negroes. I heard of no instance ot oni-
raging white Union men, ‘Those depredations were commitied very extensively, and
many of them in the immediate vicinity of one of my plantations.  The negroes” mules
were taken and carvied olly so that no negro would undertake to own a mule or a horse
or a picee of Lo, and a great many of themn will not now,

Question. You sity you were in the confederate avmy ?

nswer. Yes, siv,

Question. Originally a sceessionist ?

Answeer. Well, siv, 1T entered the confederato armncy when T was fifteen or sixteen years
old. 1 was not a seeessionist 3 T do not think I had any political opinion of any sort
very decided. T am only twenty-five now. 1 went in about 1562, and staid there o
year or two. My education and all my instinets were against secession, My family
were opposed to secession.

Question, Did you know whether the officers ol the Ireedmen’s Burean had anything
to do with the establislunent of this Loyal Leagne? i

Answer. 1 havo no sort of knowledge that they did. There may have been individ-
ual cases of persons who belonged to it and who were active, I remember of no in-
stance of that sort at this moment, mml 1 do not believe as o general proposition that
it was introduced by the Freedmen's Bureaw. :

Question, You say you have heard the eharge made by democeratic newspapers, and 1
suppose by democrats generally, that this Union Leagne was established for the pur-
pose ol intimidating and threatening the negroes and preventing them {from voting
the democratic ticlket ?

dnswer. Yes, siv, 1 said demoeratic newspapers, heeause really that is about tho only
gource from which 1 have ever got any such information. 1 do not know that I have
ever heard it from a public spealier or ever heard the charge made in privato conver-
safion,

Question, Your information, I presume, about the Ku-Klux and the outrageson which
you place so muceh relinnee, comes generally from the other side, does it not !

Answer, 8o far as the newspapers ave concorned of course it does, because, as T have
already said, the newspapers on the other side defend ity with but (wo exceptions, 5o
far as 1 know,  But as to the information of the existence of the organization nnd the
crimes, 1 say that 1 do not believe that any man in Novth Carolina, who has observed
the conrse of events in that State, and who has taken the trouble to familiavize him-
self with the condition of polities and society in the State, denies it for one moment.

Question. Do you know what is the publie debt of’ the State?

dnsweer. Very lavge, brought about by very reckless and corrupt Jegislation in my
opinion,

Question. About how mucliis it ?

Answer. 1T suppose about £33,000,000 or 534,000,000,

Question. What was it heiore the war?

Ansiwer. About $15,000,000 or $16,000,000,

CQuestion. Thal is what is called the * ante-war deht” with the interest aceumulated ?

Answer. Yes, sirv, '

Question. How do you say this addition was brought about ?

Aunswer. 1 thindk by the corrupt and reckless Tegislation in 1368 and 1869,

Question. Was that the legislature eleeted under the reconstruction act d

Ansicer, Yes, sir, and by the republican party.

Question. 1as the State received uny benetit at all from the additional debt?

Answer, Very liitle indeed; it was inereased $1L000,000 or $15,000,000, and thoe bonds
wero put in the hands of swindlers who, in iy opinion, have swindled the Stato.

Question. Who were theso men; where did they come from ¥
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Answcer. Some of thom were nativey and somo of them were known as carpet-bag-
rers.  Of tho three principal persons two were natives and one was a carpet-hagger,

Question, What were their numes?

Answer. Mr. Jones, My, Swepson, and General Littlefield,  Of course T am speaking
very freely and giving my opinion, founded, T hope, upon suffleiont reason,

Question. s that the public opinion of the State ?

Answer, T think it is of all parties now,

Question, Is the governor supposed o be implicated in the corruption?

dnzwcer. Welly theve is aovery general publie impression to that ¢ffeet. My own im-
pression, it you want to know it is this: T haveno reasen to helieve thal he is actnally
guilty of eriminal complicity in these frands, but that wneh of i, however, is due (o
his imbecility and ineapacity.

Question. Was not a gieat deal of the excitement at the last eleetion due to the fact
of this corrupt legislntion and swindling of the State government?

Answer. So fur as the excitement was concevned 1 do not think it was. FThere was
some feeling about that, and there is much in the political revolution that took place
at that time due to that.

Question, There was a great deal of feeling against the State government, was there
not ?

Answer, Considerable feeling, hut T do not think any Tawlessness grew ovt of it,

Question, T.did not allude to that.

Answers Ethink yvou said excitement, and I thought you had some reference to that.
There was sonwe feeling.,

Question, And it led, you think, in a great measure, to the defeat of the radieal or
republican party in the State?

Answer. Tthink it led in a great measure to the defeat of the party; nevertheless,
there ave many localities in which I have no idea there could have been a free election,
so far as that party was coneerned, even it there had been no excitement growing out
ol those frands,

Question. 1o you helieve the destruetion of property which has taken place there by
lawlessness and violenee would wmount in the ageregate to anything like the immense
sums that have been squandered by the State government 2

Answer. Of conrse there has been no very great destruetion of property, heeanse the
men who have been outraged are generally men without property. I have heard of
some instances of white Unionists having their property destroyed.

Question. The largest destrnetion of property was of that owuned by conservatives?

Answer. Yes, sir,

Question, ‘The hurning of harns ?

AAnswer. T have heard of some instances of burning of harns.

Question. By whom?

Answeer. Alleged to have been done by negroes most generally, Those instanees havo
grown, in mny opinion, ont ot retaliation on the part of those negroes for outrages con-
mitted on them.

Question. Was it net alleged that many of these things that you call outrages were
commitied in retaliation (or the destruetion of property ¢

Answer, T have hewd it alleged, but T do not believe there is any fonndation for it
whatever, unless it inay be in the connty of Orange.

Question. s it not alleged that the negroes in many instances insulted or committed
ontrages upon white women in the State?

Answer. 1 know of not many instances,  The instances have heen very rare, as far as
my observation has gone.  Ro far as I have any reason to believe, and invariably so far
as I know, they have heen followed by punishment.

Question. In Roheson County you say there is lawlessness—there is a gang there come
poscd, you say, of mulattoes ¢

Ansiwer They are composed of persons of Indian, negro, and perhaps white blood,
I do not know but the Indian blood predominates. They are called in that country
mulattoes,

Question, You assert that their chief rendezyvons is Skuflletown?

Answer. Ttisweonntry thickly inhabited, cight or ten miles square, called Skuflletown,

Question, Inhabited principally by negroes?

Answer, By those pergons known as mulattoes.

Question. All of them supposeil to sympathize with thoese outlaws?

Ansteer. Noy siry Ldo nat think all of them do, though I have no maore doubt about
their having n large mimber of sympathizers in that communify than I have that theso
Ku-Klux marawders wod assassing have sympathizers among what are termed respeets
able citizens, who have heretofore been considered respectable men and now are con-
sidered respeetable men in those regions,

Question, You do not attribute any political significance to that?

ngwer. Nono whatever; 1 have no hesitation insaying that there is nothing political
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about it. They dopredato even upon negroes. They will rob a negro as quickly aa
they will @ white man, and havo dono it.
Queation. You have heard from other parts of thoe State that tlie negroes frequently
disgnise themselves and depredate upon negroes{
Answeer. Noy siry I lave not.
Question. No cases of that Find?
Answer, The only case, ontside of the two instaness which I have already mentioned
that ocenrred in my district, was one in Alamance County.
Question. Do you not know there are now four negroes in prison for that offense ¥
Censweer, That s the very instance Iawn referring to in Alamance County.

By the CinsmmyaN:

CQuestion. You have stated two instances in your own cirenif, and one in Alamance
County, where negroes have heen tried and convicted for outrages upon other negroes;
do you know of any instances in the State in which members of the Ku-Kilux ovganiza-
tion have heen tried and convicted for outrages committed by them!?

Answer. 1 have already said 1 have never heard of a single instance in all North
Carolina. .

Question. What is your helief as to the seenrity of the colored peopleas i elass in that
State in consequence of the existence of that organization ?

Answer, T ithink they are o be elassed with the white Unionists. T think theveis no
sort. of security in those counties where that organization has been introduced and has
fully developed itself.

Question. Are you satisfied that the organization exists in militiry form, so that it
could he assembled for coiperation—throwghont the State, for instance?

Answer. Well, siv, 1do not think they have ever confemplated that—that they have
ever gone that far. T think that at present they are only prepaved to meet in seeret
conelave todecree the death of obnoxious persons, whether white ar hlack, and cause
them to he excented, and I am satisfied it has been done in muanerous instances,

Question. You mean to say they have not got that L in purpose !

Answer, No, sive Not so mueh in purpoae; because T think their pnrpose goes much
furtlicr than even that question contemplates. I mean they have not got that far in
organization, in development,

Question, Thave yvouany idea of the number of the orgamization existing in the State?

Angwer. Well, 1presanee that the statement of some of their members, some respeet-
able persons conneeted with them at one time, is abont correst, that there is about
30,000 or 40,000 in the State.

Question. You spoke of the efivet in severad counties of intimidation on elections; do
you know that to have been the case, from your intercourse with the people there—
that intimidation was used, or that it is now appreliended in ease an cleetion is held 7

Angieer. O yes, siv. 1 know it is apprehended, reasonably apprehended, in many
counties, 1t depends wmueh upon the Jocality, but then they embrace a large number
of countics, in my own opinion hallf of’ the State, '

Question. Has that apprehension the efleet of deferring persons from attending the
elections 7 ’

Answer, T think so, in some instances; in others it has the efieet of causing them to
vote against their sentiments aud purpose,

Question. What connties wonld you indicate in which that state of afairs exisig?

Answer, 1 helieve it exists to some extent in Ovnge, Alamanee, Caswelly Chathan,
Sampson, Harnet, Person, Rockinglitm, Anson, Duaplin, Camberlandy and Meore, |
might mention others; these are some of the connties,

Question. Fram what you havo said, is it your belief that a concentration of opinion
on the part of the conservative press and leaders of that party in open denunciation of
these outrages would prevent them?

Answer. O, yes, sir, 1o think so, if that could be bhrought abont. T their leading
politicians and presses wounld nunite in w bona fide attempt to put it down, I helieve it
would be done, beeause 1 helieve it is entively political, aud entively in the interest of
that party. ,

Question. I nnderstand from the tenor of your examination that you arve decided in
your condemnation of the incliicieney of Governor Holden !

Answer. 1oy I have frequently said toat T'rbink he i responsible. T conld have
drawn an act of assembly that could have been pissed ene or two years ago, when he
had n two-thirds vote at his call, which would have suppressed ity provided wo had
had an honest man as excentivo; and that, too, withont infringing the constitutional
rights of any man in the State. I think any lawyer who would take the trouble to

think about it would have done the same thing.

By Mr. Braik:

Question. Could it not bo done now ¥
Angwer. 1 think it could if these conditions could be performed.
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Question, Conld it not be done by suppressing all these secret socioties ¥

dnstoer, I think not. ‘ ,

Qucatto;r."l‘hosu that give the protext as well as those charged with committing these
outrages o i ST e

Anslt;uér. I'do not think the suppression of secret societies would have nny such cffect.
In-tho first place I doubt very miuich if it is priacticable to do'it} and in the next place, -
I have noiden that it would'afford any security to those persons who'nre now inscecuro,

uestion. You havoe spoken of an veeurrence in Fayettovillo—a man by the namo of

Raiford, who was beaten or injured; you did not speak of your own kuowledgo at'all?

Ansteer, Noj, sir 1 hinvo no doubt about the fact; it is merely upon-information j I
did not see the man at all, ,

Question, You only licard of it from another person, wvho failed to produce the man
when you sent for him 1

Ansicer, Yes, siry hint that porson was entirely reliable.

Question.” Whiy was hoe?

Answer. Mr, Riley, forn

ormerly shoriff of the county, a {ruthful man and entirely relia-
blo. Mr. Blocker and Mr, Guthrio, n membor of the bar, also told e ithout it,

Question, Did anybhody attempt to interfere with the holling of your court in Fay-
ottovillet

Answer, Not at all,

Question, Iy any other county ¥ ,

Ansteer, Not at ally nor has'thero ever heen such an attempt in North Caroling, and I
do not suppose there ever witl bo from thé present cordition of things, I havo heard
of no ingtance of resistunco to process—that is to say, openly. The operations are car-
ried on altogother on a different programimo,

Question. Seeret : . ,

Ansieer, Seerett usurping juries and grand juries, and controllitig the remedies and
administration of Justico by that means, 1t is not necessary for o inan to resist o pro-
cess that cirries him beéfore naglstrate who will be certain to discharge him, or be-
foro o court-that will be certain to nequit him,

Question, I'ho court, as I understand, over which you preside, is generally presided
over by repulilieans? ‘ ‘ L

Ansieer, Yess litit issues of faet arve generally sibmitted to the juries,

Question, ‘Tho juries nre siimmmoried by tho sherifty? , ‘

Answer, They nre suinimoned indiseriminately there by law, As a goneral rule, of
cotrso, nogroes are not compoetent to sit on juries, and thelr names are not put on the
list—onght not to be in"many instainces—and Union whites, in those counties whera
difficilties oceury are largely in the winority.

Question. You say negroes aro incompotent to sit on a jury?

Answer. A very largo number of theniave,

Question. You to not mean incompetent by law? . o ;

Ansteer. 0 no, T do ot mean that there is any digtinetion  on_aceonntof color'made
by law  but a very largo proportion of the negroes have not sufficient intelligence and
charneter to make good jurors ;- and so, I say, there are o considerablo number of
whites—of course a larger proportion of negroes than whites,  Under onr act ot nssem-
bly the -bonwd of cowtty commissioners are the sole judges, They are compelled to
revise the jusy list, anil all that aro deemedd incompotent are striclkoen out,

Question. How are those cominissioners uppointu& 1

Answer, Llected by the peopile,

Question, What iy the county in which Tuyottoville is situated?

Ansicer, Ciimberland,

Question, Is thit county republican or democratic?

Ansieer, Democratic, A

Qtwslio'n. In swhat part of the Statoe did you live proviously to your residing in Wil-
mington ,

Afz’awcr. T was'born in Brangwick County, just over tho river from Wilimington, on
the south side of Cnpe Fear River.

Sucxlibn. You havo nlways lived in that region of tho country? ;

nsiwer. Always, myself and family, X own property in all threo connties, Brunswick,
Now Hanover, and Onslow,

WASHINGTON, D. C., February 14, 1871,
Grorae W. LocAN sworn and examined,

By tho CriAIRMAN:: T
Question, In what part of North Carolina do you live?
Answer, In Rutlierfordton, Rutherford County,
3ucati0n. How long huvo you lived in the Stato?
nswer, 1 was born in the county in which I live,
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Question,” What public positions have ',vdl"\', occupiedt i o o

Answer. T have been i military and civil' life; 1 was first eaptain’of tho militia and
afterwards o brigadier goneral, I was clerk and master in cqu!t{y ;. clerk of the county
cotirt for abont nine years, - I'was a member of the convention of 1863, n meinber of the
legislutiiro of 186667, nid was o member of the conféderate congress during its lass
two sessions, : Co

Question. Aro yon now a’judge on the bench?

Anseer. Yesy of the ninth judieial distvict, ;

Ques{ion, (ive ug the mines of tlie counties that your district embraces.

Answer, Polk, Rutherford, Clevelimi, Lincoln; Gaston, Mecklenburg, and Cabarras,

Queslion, Please go oi and state as conneetedly as you ¢an the state of security of
person-and property in that distriet., o ,

Ansteers In the connty of Polk I do not recollect of any ontrages or difliculties oceur-
ring s the law, T think, is'execited there generally § in other words, oftenders aro appre-
hentded and prinislicd, ns a-general role,” In the connty of Rutherford there: has heon
no resistaneo to the execéution of the law; when a'precept. has heen issued Uie officors
of the luw have been able to execute it There havoe- beei n fow distuchnees i the
county by what is generally known ag the Kn-Klux,  Thoe first persons 1 had avreested
myselty niinvestigation was had before me, and 1 bound them over to conrt n bill was
sent before the grand jiry, and " trie bill was fotnd, The trinl has not taken place
it was postponed in the regular proecedings of court, - It was understood from-the evi-
donee that the men acetsed had heenout on two occasions.  ‘I'hey went {o the houses
of various persons, whipped a negro woman severely s also whipped-a whiito man and
a negro man,  This is from the evidence that was addueed before me, upon which I
bound them over. Since that time, in” the couity of \Rutherford; about. threo weoks
ago, & white woman was whippeds  The informalion: that 1 had about it was that it
was done by men disguised, In the cotndy of Ratherford, my opinion is that a fair
trinl could he hadj that is, it the evidence were sufileient to conviet any one of any
offense, ‘These are the only inst ances that happened in the county of Rutherford,

Question. Were the outrages inflicted by persons in disgnise ?
Answer, Yos, sivy all of them,  The persons that 1 had arrested appeared hefore me,
and thie proot was that they wero disguised.

By Mr. Bram: Ny ,

Question, What did {hey whip these people forj on what pretense ?

Angwer, Welly the pretense for the whipping of' the negro woman was that she had
talked saucily to'a white womiam; tho pretense for whippting the negro man was that
ho biad made’n contract with & white man and had not padd him whiat he owed him;
the pretense for whipping the white man was that he had heard some tules about the
Ku-Klux and told them,

By thoe Criamaan:

Question, Go on with the rest of your statement,

Answer. In the connty of Cleveland I havenot taken any minutes of any sueh oceunr-
rences; but thero have heen nnumber committed fu that coinity during the lust twelve
or eighteen months,  The last one was about thiee weeks ago.

Question. \What has been tho charaeter of those ocenvrences ?

Answer, The ehivacter is from whipping to Killing, or murder.

Question. Tave any of those eases heen investignled ?

Angwcer. No, siry there have been attempts made to investigate themy but it ean’t bo
dono,

Question, Tor what reason 9.

Answer, The renson is, the fenr that if a person reveals what he knows ahout them
or if nny person {vies them, he is in danger of his life, I have conversed with differen
persons—indedd, they have come tome for advice, to know what to do—aid they havo
universally told mo, that they were afraid to say anything, lest they might receivo
violence, porhaps, ng soon s it was found ont that they had told what they knew, or
what had happened, v o

Question, Do you believoe thit to be thoe state of feeling existing iu that county ?

Angwer. No doubt of it. I have conversed with respectable men-=men of high-ohar-
acter. 1 left hoine last Monday weelk ; I saw different nien on the road; as respeetnblo
as any i the State of Nortlh Carolini—men whio hind hevetotore been bold and fearless
about telling to any one what they believed to ho tlie ease, but whio have now hecomo
fearful, nn(l‘]mvc stopped talking, As to Cleveland Connty, they do not resist nrrest,
The sherifl can arrest when processes are issued; it as to ninking nny. fair, bona flde
investigation of what really was the case, it cannot ho done, DPersons have stated to
mo and to_the solicitor, so I have beon informed: by him, that those oflonses have been
committed, and the persons positively identified, but thero is no such thing as finding
a true bill agninst them, That' is the easo in the county of Gaston also, ‘There havo
been efforts mado more than once to get bills of indictment found in thoe counties of



